
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

 Thursday, 11th April, 2024 
at 5.30 pm 

 
PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING 
 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, 
Southampton 

 
This meeting is open to the public 

 
 Members 

 
 Councillor Blackman (Chair) 

Councillor Moulton (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Evemy 
Councillor Y Frampton 
Councillor Galton 
Councillor Lambert 
Councillor Dr Paffey 
Councillor Leggett 
Councillor Quadir 
 
 

 Appointed Members 
 

 Catherine Hobbs, Roman Catholic Church 
Rob Sanders, Church of England 
Vacant, Primary Parent Governor 

 
 Contacts 

 

 Judy Cordell 
Democratic Support Officer 
Tel. 023 8083 2766 
Email: judy.cordell@southampton.gov.uk  

  
 Mark Pirnie 

Scrutiny Manager 
Tel: 023 8083 3886 
Email: mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk  

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:judy.cordell@southampton.gov.uk
mailto:mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk


 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee holds the Executive to account, exercises the call-
in process, and sets and monitors standards for scrutiny. It formulates a programme of scrutiny 
inquiries and appoints Scrutiny Panels to undertake them.  Members of the Executive cannot serve on 
this Committee. 
 
Role of Overview and Scrutiny 
Overview and Scrutiny includes the following three functions:  

 Holding the Executive to account by questioning and evaluating the Executive’s actions, both before 
and after decisions taken.   

 Developing and reviewing Council policies, including the Policy Framework and Budget Strategy.   

 Making reports and recommendations on any aspect of Council business and other matters that 
affect the City and its citizens.   

Overview and Scrutiny can ask the Executive to reconsider a decision, but they do not have the power 
to change the decision themselves.  
 
Southampton: Corporate Plan 2022-2030 sets out the four key outcomes: 

 Strong Foundations for Life.- For people to access and maximise opportunities to truly thrive, 
Southampton will focus on ensuring residents of all ages and backgrounds have strong foundations 
for life. 

 A proud and resilient city - Southampton’s greatest assets are our people. Enriched lives lead to 
thriving communities, which in turn create places where people want to live, work and study. 

 A prosperous city - Southampton will focus on growing our local economy and bringing investment 
into our city. 

 A successful, sustainable organisation - The successful delivery of the outcomes in this plan will 
be rooted in the culture of our organisation and becoming an effective and efficient council. 

 
Procedure / Public Representations 
At the discretion of the Chair, members of the public may address the meeting on any report included 
on the agenda in which they have a relevant interest. Any member of the public wishing to address the 
meeting should advise the Democratic Support Officer (DSO) whose contact details are on the front 
sheet of the agenda. 
 
Access is available for disabled people.  
Please contact the Democratic Support Officer who will help to make any necessary arrangements. 
 
Fire Procedure: - 
In the event of a fire or other emergency a continuous alarm will sound, and you will be advised by 
Council officers what action to take.  
 
Mobile Telephones: - Please switch your mobile telephones to silent whilst in the meeting 
 

Use of Social Media: - The Council supports the video or audio recording of meetings open to the 
public, for either live or subsequent broadcast. However, if, in the Chair’s opinion, a person filming or 
recording a meeting or taking photographs is interrupting proceedings or causing a disturbance, under 
the Council’s Standing Orders the person can be ordered to stop their activity, or to leave the meeting.  
By entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of those images 
and recordings for broadcasting and or/training purposes. The meeting may be recorded by the press 
or members of the public.  Any person or organisation filming, recording, or broadcasting any meeting 
of the Council is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting from them doing so.  Details of the 
Council’s Guidance on the recording of meetings is available on the Council’s website. 
 



 

Smoking Policy: - The Council operates a no-smoking policy in all civic buildings. 
 

Dates of Meetings for the Municipal Year: 
 

2023 2024 

10 August 11 January 

14 September 01 February 

12 October 07 March 

9 November 11 April 

14 December  

 
 

 
CONDUCT OF MEETING 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED 

The general role and terms of reference for the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee, together with those for all Scrutiny 
Panels, are set out in Part 2 (Article 6) of the 
Council’s Constitution, and their particular roles 
are set out in Part 4 (Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules – paragraph 5) of the 
Constitution. 

Only those items listed on the attached agenda 
may be considered at this meeting. 

 

 

RULES OF PROCEDURE QUORUM 

The meeting is governed by the Council 
Procedure Rules and the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of 
the Constitution. 

The minimum number of appointed Members 
required to be in attendance to hold the meeting is 
4. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, both the 
existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other Interest”  they may have in 
relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda. 

 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter 
that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or wife, or a person with 
whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:  

(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
(ii) Sponsorship: 
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton City Council) 
made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the you / your 
spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under which goods or services 
are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has not been fully discharged. 



 

(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton. 
(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of Southampton for a 
month or longer. 
(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and the tenant 
is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests. 
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of Southampton, and either: 

a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body, or 

b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the 
shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest that exceeds 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 
 

 
Other Interests 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an, ‘Other Interest’ in any membership of, or 
occupation of a position of general control or management in: 

 Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature 

 Any body directed to charitable purposes 

 Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy 
 

 
Principles of Decision Making 

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:- 

 proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 

 due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 

 respect for human rights; 

 a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 

 setting out what options have been considered; 

 setting out reasons for the decision; and 

 clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 
 

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must: 

 understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.  The decision-
maker must direct itself properly in law; 

 take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the authority as a 
matter of legal obligation to take into account); 

 leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 

 act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 

 not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as the 
“rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle); 

 comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual basis.  Save 
to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward funding are unlawful; and 

 act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 
 

 



 

 

AGENDA 

 
1   APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 
 To note any changes in membership of the Panel made in accordance with Council 

Procedure Rule 4.3. 
 

2   DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

 In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct, 
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the 
agenda for this meeting. 
 

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic 
Support Officer. 

 
3   DECLARATIONS OF SCRUTINY INTEREST  

 
 Members are invited to declare any prior participation in any decision taken by a 

Committee, Sub-Committee, or Panel of the Council on the agenda and being 
scrutinised at this meeting.  
   
 

4   DECLARATION OF PARTY POLITICAL WHIP  
 

 Members are invited to declare the application of any party political whip on any matter 
on the agenda and being scrutinised at this meeting. 
 

5   STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR  
 

6   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  
(Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on 13th 
February 2024 (Special), 4th March 2024 (Special) and 14th March 2024 and to deal 
with any matters arising, attached. 
 

7   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - CONFIDENTIAL PAPERS INCLUDED 
IN THE FOLLOWING ITEM  
 

 To move that in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, specifically the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules contained within the Constitution, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting in respect of any consideration of the confidential appendix 
to the Item 8b.  
 
Attached to Appendix 2 is a document exempt from general publication based on 
Category 3 (information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the Authority holding the information)) of paragraph 10.4 of the 
Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules. In applying the public interest test 



 

this information has been deemed exempt from the publication due to commercial 
sensitivity. It is not considered to be in the public interest to disclose this information as 
it would reveal information which would put the Council at a commercial disadvantage. 
 

8   FORWARD PLAN (Pages 9 - 12) 
 

 Report of the Scrutiny Manager enabling the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee to examine the content of the Forward Plan and to discuss issues of 
interest or concern with the Executive. 
 

a) Housing Allocations Policy (Pages 13 - 62) 

b) Toys R Us Development Agreement (Pages 63 - 72) 
 

9   MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE  
(Pages 73 - 78) 
 

 Report of the Scrutiny Manager enabling the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee to monitor and track progress on recommendations made to the Executive 
at previous meetings. 
 

Wednesday, 3 April 2024 Director – Legal and Governance 
 



 

- 28 - 
 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 FEBRUARY 2024 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillors Blackman (Chair), Moulton (Vice-Chair), Evemy, Y Frampton, 
Galton, Lambert and Dr Paffey 
  
 

Apologies: Councillors Greenhalgh and Quadir 
   

Also in attendance: Councillor Letts, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Change 

 
53. APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

It was noted that following receipt of the temporary resignation of Councillor 
Greenhalgh, Councillor Leggett had replaced her for the purposes of the meeting in 
accordance with the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 4.3. 
 

54. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - CONFIDENTIAL PAPERS INCLUDED 
IN THE FOLLOWING ITEM  

RESOLVED: that in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, specifically the Access 
to Information Procedure Rules contained within the Constitution, the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting in respect of any consideration of the confidential 
appendices to the following Item. 
 
Appendices 2 and 3 to this report are confidential and exempt from publication based 
on Category 3 of paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to Information Procedure 
Rules. It contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the Authority holding that information). 
 

55. THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COUNCIL  

The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Corporate Services 
detailing the financial position of the Council.  
 
Councillor Letts, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Change and the Executive Director for Corporate Services (S151 Officer) were in 
attendance. 
 
The Committee moved into confidential session to discuss the appendices attached to 
the report. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(i) That officers promptly share DLUHC feedback relating to the request for 
Exceptional Financial Support with Group Leaders and the OSMC; and  

(ii) That officer budget proposals for 2024/25 that have been rejected by Cabinet 
are provided to the Committee. 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

- 29 - 
 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 4 MARCH 2024 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillors Blackman (Chair), Y Frampton, Galton, Lambert, Dr Paffey, 
Leggett, P Baillie and Shields 
Appointed Member: Rob Sanders   
 

Apologies: Councillors Moulton, Evemy and Quadir 
 

Also in attendance: Councillor Fielker, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Letts, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Change 

  
 

56. APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 

It was noted that following receipt of the temporary resignation of Councillors Evemy 
and Moulton from the Committee, the Monitoring Officer, acting under delegated 
powers, had appointed Councillors Shields and P. Baillie to replace them for the 
purposes of this meeting.  Apologies were noted from Councillor Quadir.  
 
 

57. BUDGET PROPOSALS - 2024/25  

 

The Committee considered the information contained within the Cabinet papers 
published on 26 February 2024 in order to provide feedback for Cabinet to consider at 
their 5 March 2024 meeting. 
 
Councillor Fielker, Leader of the Council, Councillor Letts, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Change, Andrew Travers, Chief Executive,  
Mel Creighton, Executive Director Corporate Services, Claire Edgar, Executive Director 
of Wellbeing and Housing, Rob Henderson, Executive Director of Childrens Services 
and Learning, Adam Wilkinson, Executive Director, Place, Munira Holloway, Director 
Strategy and Performance and Richard Williams, Director of Finance were present and 
with the consent of the Chair addressed the meeting. 
 
The Committee discussed the Corporate Plan outlining the key priorities for the Council, 
transformation targets that had been set in the timescale available, savings proposals 
and how these would be achieved, proposals to stop or reduce non-statutory services, 
the future of St. Mary’s Leisure Centre, the new IT Client management system to 
replace Care Director and the expected reduction in the workforce.   
 
RESOLVED: the Committee to receive regular reporting of transformation progress 
over the next municipal year detailing the impact on services and citizens. 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

- 30 - 
 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14 MARCH 2024 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillors Blackman (Chair), Moulton (except part of item 62 and item 
63) (Vice-Chair), Evemy, Y Frampton, Galton, Lambert, Dr Paffey, 
Leggett   
Appointed Member: Rob Sanders 
 

Apologies: Councillor Quadir  
   

Also in attendance: Councillor Fielker, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Keogh, Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Bogle, Cabinet Member for Economic Development 

  
 

58. APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 

Apologies were received from Councillor Quadir. 
 

59. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes for the Committee meeting held on 1st February 2024 be 
approved and signed as a correct record. 
 

60. HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES  

 
At the request of the Chair, the Committee discussed the disruption to household waste 
services and the action being taken to address the situation.   
 
Councillor Keogh, Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport, Councillor Fielker, 
Leader of the Council, Adam Wilkinson Executive Director of Place, Ian Collins, Director 
of Environment and Dave Tyrie, Head of City Services were present and with the 
consent of the Chair addressed the meeting.  
 
The Committee discussed with the Cabinet Member and Leader of the Council the 
disruption to household waste services across the City, the reasons behind the drop in 
services, actions being taken to rectify the situation, reporting of missed bins, reporting 
of data, as well as future ambitions to make improvements.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(i) That a summary of missed collections for February 2024, by collection type, 
was circulated to the Committee. 

(ii) That consideration was given to updating the Council’s website, enabling the 
reporting of missed bins to be undertaken beyond the current 48-hour limit. 

(iii) That the Leader provides the Committee with confidential details related to 
the Administrations communications with the waste collectors and their trade 
union representatives. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



 

 

- 31 - 
 

(iv) That, reflecting on the challenges experienced, the Executive review the 
approach followed and identify learning points to be utilised for future 
transformation projects. 

(v) That clarification was provided to the Committee on whether the Council was 
following due process with regards to enforcing employment contracts related 
to the current disruptions. 

 
 

61. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - CONFIDENTIAL PAPERS INCLUDED 
IN THE FOLLOWING ITEM  

 

The Chair moved that in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, specifically the 
Access to Information Procedure Rules contained within the Constitution, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting in respect of any consideration of the confidential 
appendices to the following Item.  
 
Attached as Appendix 2 was a briefing paper on the Asset Development and Disposal 
Programme due to be considered by Cabinet on 19th March. The Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions from 19th March 2024 identifies that appendices attached to the 
Cabinet report on the Asset Development and Disposal Programme contain information 
exempt from general publication based on Category 3 (information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding the 
information)) of paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules. 
In applying the public interest test this information had been deemed exempt from the 
publication due to commercial sensitivity. It was not considered to be in the public 
interest to disclose this information as it would reveal information which would put the 
Council at a commercial disadvantage. 
 

62. FORWARD PLAN  

 

The Committee considered the report of the Scrutiny Manager which enabled the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to examine the content of the Forward 
Plan and to discuss issues of interest or concern with the Executive.   
 
SOLENT LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP INTEGRATION INTO THE SOLENT 
UNITARY AUTHORITIES 
 
The Committee considered the briefing paper attached to this item detailing the 
forthcoming Cabinet decision regarding the Solent Local Enterprise Partnership 
Integration into the Solent Unitary Authorities.  
 
Councillor Bogle, Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Nawaz Khan, Head of 
Economic Development and Regeneration and Matt Hill, Service Manager, Economic 
Development were present and with the consent of the Chair addressed the meeting.   

 
RESOLVED: 
 

(i) That, in recognition of the current uncertainty with regards to long term 
funding, the issue returns to the Committee in 2024/25 with a focus on 

Page 6



 

 

- 32 - 
 

developing a sustainable model for supporting economic development in 
Southampton and the Solent region. 

(ii) That the Executive consider scheduling a briefing for members on economic 
development issues, with a focus on the Economic Development Strategy 
and deliverable outcomes and performance targets. 

 
ASSET DEVELOPMENT AND DISPOSAL PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee considered the confidential briefing paper attached to this item detailing 
Asset Development and Disposal Programme.  
 
Councillor Bogle, Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Tina Dyer-Slade – Head 
of Corporate Estates and Assets and Gaetana Wiseman, Head of Support Services 
were present and with the consent of the Chair addressed the meeting.   

RESOLVED: 

(i) That, reflecting concerns about governance of the programme, the 
Committee and Chair of the Governance Committee engage with the 
Monitoring Officer to identify opportunities for appropriate and proportionate 
oversight of the Asset Development and Disposal Programme.  

(ii) That a communications plan is developed to support the Asset Development 
and Disposal Programme. 

 
 

63. MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE  

 
The Committee noted the report and tabled at the meeting, modified Appendix 1, of the 
Scrutiny Manager which enabled the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to 
monitor and track progress on recommendations made to the Executive at previous 
meetings. 
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION-MAKER:  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: FORWARD PLAN 

DATE OF DECISION: 11 APRIL 2024 

REPORT OF: SCRUTINY MANAGER 

CONTACT DETAILS 

Executive Director  Title Executive Director – Corporate Services 

 Name:  Mel Creighton Tel: 023 8083 3528 

 E-mail: Mel.creighton@southampton.gov.uk 

Author: Title Scrutiny Manager 

 Name:  Mark Pirnie Tel: 023 8083 3886 

 E-mail: Mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

Attached to Appendix 2 is a document exempt from general publication based on 
Category 3 (information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the Authority holding the information)) of paragraph 10.4 of the 
Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules. In applying the public interest test 
this information has been deemed exempt from the publication due to commercial 
sensitivity. It is not considered to be in the public interest to disclose this information as 
it would reveal information which would put the Council at a commercial disadvantage. 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

This item enables the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC) to 
examine the content of the Forward Plan and to discuss issues of interest or concern 
with the Executive to ensure that forthcoming decisions made by the Executive benefit 
local residents. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Committee discuss the items listed in paragraph 3 of the 
report to highlight any matters which Members feel should be taken 
into account by the Executive when reaching a decision. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To enable Members to identify any matters which they feel Cabinet should 
take into account when reaching a decision. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. None. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. The Council’s Forward Plan for Executive Decisions from 16 April 2024 has 
been published.  The following issues were identified for discussion with the 
Decision Maker: 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



Portfolio Decision Requested By 

Housing Housing Allocations Policy Cllr Blackman 

Economic 
Development 

Toys R Us – Development 
Agreement 

Cllr Blackman  

 

4. Briefing papers responding to the items identified by members of the 
Committee are appended to this report.  Members are invited to use the 
papers to explore the issues with the decision maker. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

5. The details for the items identified in paragraph 3 are set out in the Executive 
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken. 

Property/Other 

6. The details for the items identified in paragraph 3 are set out in the Executive 
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

7. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Part 1A Section 9 of 
the Local Government Act 2000. 

Other Legal Implications:  

8. The details for the items identified in paragraph 3 are set out in the Executive 
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken. 

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

9. The details for the items identified in paragraph 3 are set out in the Executive 
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

10. The details for the items identified in paragraph 3 are set out in the Executive 
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken. 

KEY DECISION No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None directly as a result of this report 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Briefing Paper – Housing Allocations Policy 

2. Briefing Paper - Toys R Us Development Agreement. 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 10



Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and Safety 
Impact Assessments (ESIA) to be carried out? 

Identified in 
Executive 
report 

Data Protection Impact Assessment 

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection Impact 
Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out? 

Identified in 
Executive 
report 

Other Background Documents 

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

  1 
 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:   HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY  

DATE:   11 APRIL 2024 

RECIPIENT:  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

THIS IS NOT A DECISION PAPER 
 

SUMMARY: 
 
1. The Allocations Policy details Southampton City Council’s (the council’s) updated 

allocation scheme. All Housing Authorities in England are required by section 166A (1) of 
the Housing Act 1996 to have an allocation scheme. This scheme must determine the 
priorities and procedures to be followed in allocating housing accommodation.  

 
2. The council is proposing to replace a points-based system with a banding scheme to 

prioritise applicants on the Housing Needs Register. The banding scheme operates by 
grouping applicants into 4 bands in order of priority. The banding scheme is considered 
easier for residents to understand, and simpler for the housing authority to administer and 
prioritise those in most need. The banding scheme is the predominant allocation scheme 
in England.  

 
BACKGROUND and BRIEFING DETAILS: 

 
3. In Southampton, the demand for social housing outweighs its supply. The council owns 

16,381 dwellings and there are a further 7,901 dwellings owned by housing associations.  
However, there are only a limited number of vacancies. In 2022/2023, there were just over 
8,000 people on the waiting list for social housing but only 768 lets were made.  The 
proposed new policy provides a framework for allocating a limited number of vacancies in 
the city.  
 

4. There are 5 main changes proposed for the policy which may impact residents on the 
Housing Needs Register or in social housing in Southampton.  

 
i. Proposal to change from a point-based system to a banding scheme.  

 
The banding scheme is designed to give the greatest priority to those applicants who 
are in the highest need. Under the current scheme, applicants receive one point per 
month for waiting, in addition to the other points which relate to their circumstances. 
Therefore, applicants can accrue many points by waiting a long time. They are often 
successful in bidding on properties to the detriment of those who applied later but are 
in more acute need. To ensure people with acute need are housed quickly, officers 
seek exceptions to the current policy. This undermines confidence in the policy and 
risks the council’s ability to be equitable in its treatment of all applicants. The new 
scheme ensures that those in the highest need are given the highest priority. If there 
are applicants with the same band, they will be prioritised by the date they were 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8a



 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

  2 
 

awarded the banding.  If applicants in the same band have the same banding date, 
then priority will be given to the applicant with the earliest registration date. 
 
Additionally, the banding scheme is used widely by other authorities and is simpler to 
understand. The current policy has 18 different points categories and 3 different 
applicant categories who may be entitled to those points categories. Whereas the 
banding scheme has 4 bands in order of priority and no distinct applicant categories.  
 

ii. Proposed changes to the number of refusals applicants can make 
 
Under the current scheme, applicants use the Homebid website to view available 
properties and make bids for homes they are eligible and interested in. If the applicant 
is offered a property, currently they can refuse as many offers as they would like 
without penalty.  
 
The proposal is that if three suitable offers are refused by an applicant, the applicant 
will be placed into Band D (the lowest priority band) for a total of 6 months. If a 
suitable offer is refused a fourth time, the applicant will be removed from the Housing 
Needs Register. This change is proposed because refusal of properties is time-
consuming for the council and can result in a potential rent loss. Applying this penalty 
will be done where the council is satisfied the offer was reasonable and the reason for 
refusal unreasonable. Applicants will have a right to review any decision to penalise 
refusals. 
 
There are times when refusal penalties would not apply. This includes if an applicant 
placed in Band A1 and A2 (those needing to move due to urgent medical or welfare 
needs and people escaping violence or intimidation), will receive one offer. If this offer 
is refused, they will be placed back into their previous band. If the applicant did not 
previously have a band, they will be removed from the Housing Needs Register. The 
council will continue with the policy that if an urgent Adapted Property Direct Let is 
refused by an applicant, they will no longer be considered and wait in turn.  
 

iii. Proposed changes to the bedroom eligibility 
 
Under the current scheme, two children of the same sex are expected to share a 
bedroom regardless of their age gap. Under the new policy, children, from the age of 
16 years old and older, will be entitled to their own bedroom. This mirrors the rules 
that currently apply to tenants in the private sector, with regard to Housing Benefit 
and Local Housing allowance regulations. This may over time increase the numbers 
of applicants who need larger properties. However, the council will still offer smaller 
properties to families if they would prefer to move sooner and if this would improve 
their housing situation. 
 

iv. Proposed changes to Local Connection 

 

Currently, applicants must have lived in Southampton for three continuous years 

before they are allowed to be on the Housing Needs Register. It is proposed that 

applicants can apply to the Housing Needs Register if they have lived in Southampton 

for three out of the past five years. This means that those who have had to leave 

Page 14



 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

  3 
 

Southampton to find temporary accommodation, would not be excluded from the 

Housing Needs Register for that reason. 

 
v. Proposed change to ask applicants to re-register on an annual basis 

 
Currently, once applicants are accepted onto the Housing Needs Register, they do 
not have to re-register on an annual basis. It is proposed that all applicants will have 
to re-register annually. This will confirm whether circumstances have changed and 
ensure applicants are assigned to the correct band. This means if the policy is 
approved and implemented, then existing applications will be closed. For the majority, 
the process to re-register will include a simpler exercise and not a full new application 
to be made. There is very little change to the overall eligibility rules to join the 
Housing Needs Register so most applicants will still qualify for rehousing. However, 
not all will receive the same level of overall priority. Of those who wish to reapply, the 
applicants most impacted will be those who have waited a long time and accrued 
significant points simply by waiting. However, if their circumstances have not 
changed, they are likely to still be permitted to remain on the Housing Needs 
Register.  

 
5. Under the Officer Scheme of Delegation, the Director of Housing has the delegated 

authority to make an exception to policy, give additional priority or take other action 
necessary. This delegated authority will only be used in very exceptional circumstances to 
ensure the council is equitable in its treatment of applications for re-housing. 
 

RESOURCE/POLICY/FINANCIAL/LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
6. Section 166A of the Localism Act 2011 states that the allocation scheme must have 

regard to the tenancy and homelessness strategy. A strategy review has been undertaken 
to ensure that this policy aligns with our policies and strategies, including our Corporate 
Plan 2022/2030, Tenancy Strategy and new Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 
2024-2029.  
 

7. The implementation of the policy is subject to having the new computer system in place. 
The Procurement team will be required to find an appropriate provider and the system will 
need to be correctly set up. Training will also be required for the Allocations team and 
other relevant officers on how to use this new system.  

 
8. There are also financial implications of this policy, with the requirement of a new computer 

system. On 6 March 2024, the Cost Control Panel gave their approval for the service to 
procure a new system.  
 

9. A public consultation was launched on the 30 January for 7 weeks and closed on 19 
March 2024. The consultation was shared with all those on the Housing Needs Register 
via email or text, on our social media, including Nextdoor targeting areas with large 
concentrations of social housing. The consultation was also shared on our eBulletins, like 
YourCityYourSay, City News, Housing Internal Bulletin and Tenants’ Link. We also held 
focus groups with social housing tenants in the Support Housing Forum, Scrutiny Panel 
and Tenant Inspectors group. We received 426 completed survey responses, over half of 
whom are current applicants on the Housing Needs Register. The service and consultation 

Page 15



 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

  4 
 

team are currently analysing and considering the feedback. The full report will be available 
on 5th April 2024. 

 
From the quantitative data most respondents agree with the changes proposed in the new 
policy whilst acknowledging that that changes could have an impact on them, their family 
or community which may be negative.  
 
The tables below provide the headline numbers from the quantitative tick-box questions: 
 
 

i. Proposal to replace a point-based scheme with a banding scheme 
 
Q1 (Proposal to replace a point-based scheme with a banding scheme) To what 
extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? 
 

Strongly Agree/Agree Disagree/Strongly 
disagree 

Neither Agree/Disagree 

45% 38% 16% 

 
Q2 (Proposal to replace a point-based scheme with a banding scheme) What impact 
do you feel this may have on you, your family or the wider community? 
 

Very/fairly positive impact Fairly/very negative No impact at all 

32% 46% 15% 

 
ii. Proposed changes to the number of offers an applicant can refuse 

 
Q4 (Proposed changes to the number of offers an applicant can refuse) To what 
extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? 
 

Strongly Agree/Agree Disagree/Strongly 
disagree 

Neither 

61% 27% 12% 

 
Q5 (Proposed changes to the number of offers an applicant can refuse) What impact 
do you feel this may have on you, your family or the wider community? 
 

Very/fairly positive impact Fairly/very negative No impact at all  

39% 29% 24% 

 
iii. Proposal to require applicants to re-register every year 

 
Q13 (Proposal to require applicants to re-register every year) To what extent do you 
agree or disagree with this proposal? 
 

Strongly Agree/Agree Disagree/Strongly 
disagree 

Neither 

48% 39% 13% 

Page 16



 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

  5 
 

 
Q14 (Proposal to require applicants to re-register every year) What impact do you feel 
this may have on you, your family or the wider community? 
 

Very/fairly positive 
impact 

Fairly/very negative No impact at all Don’t Know 

31% 38% 22% 9% 

 
iv. Proposed change that allows children to be entitled to their own 

bedroom from the age of 16 
 
Q7 (Proposed change that allows children to be entitled to their own bedroom from 
the age of 16) To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? 
 

Strongly Agree/Agree Disagree/Strongly 
disagree 

Neither 

62% 20% 17% 

 
Q8 (Proposed change that allows children to be entitled to their own bedroom from 
the age of 16) What impact do you feel this may have on you, your family or the wider 
community? 
 

Very/fairly positive 
impact 

Fairly/very negative No impact at all Don’t know 

41% 22% 29% 8% 

 
v. Proposed changes to the amount of time an applicant must have lived in 

Southampton 
 
Q10 (Proposed changes to the amount of time an applicant must have lived in 
Southampton) To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? 
 

Strongly Agree/Agree Disagree/Strongly 
disagree 

Neither 

58% 21% 22% 

 
Q11 (Proposed changes to the amount of time an applicant must have lived in 
Southampton) What impact do you feel this may have on you, your family or the wider 
community? 
 

Very/fairly positive 
impact 

Fairly/very negative No impact at all Don’t know 

36% 19% 35% 10% 

 
vi. Proposed requirement that existing tenants have an inspection before 

they move that confirms a property has been kept to an acceptable 
standard 

 

Page 17



 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

  6 
 

Q16 (Proposed requirement that existing tenants have an inspection before they 
move that confirms a property has been kept to an acceptable standard) To what 
extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? 
 

Strongly Agree/Agree Disagree/Strongly 
disagree 

Neither 

71% 9% 20% 

 
Q17 (Proposed requirement that existing tenants have an inspection before they 
move that confirms a property has been kept to an acceptable standard) What impact 
do you feel this may have on you, your family or the wider community? 
 

Very/fairly positive 
impact 

Fairly/very negative No impact at all Don’t know 

49% 10% 34% 8% 

 
 

10. The council is required by the Housing Act 1996 to consult with private registered 
providers on its plans to produce a new policy.  

 
11. The service invited private registered providers to take part in the public consultation on 12 

February. The service will share a final version with them prior to June Cabinet.   

 
12. The council has due regard to the public sector equality duty under the Equality Act 2010 

and the Human Rights Act 1998 in formulating and carrying out this policy. 
 
OPTIONS and TIMESCALES: 
 
13. If the policy is adopted, there will be a delay between the adoption and implementation of 

the policy, due to the time required for the Procurement team to purchase and set up a 
new computer system. The policy is due to be presented to the Cabinet in June 2024, and 
if approved, it is estimated the implementation phase will be completed by March 2025. 
The implementation date will be brought forward if the computer system is purchased and 
set up before this date. If approved, the Executive Director for Resident Services will seek 
delegation to decide on the implementation time scales of the policy.  

 
RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
14. The implementation of this policy is subject to having the new computer system in place. 

The Procurement team and the Allocations team will ensure that all steps are ready to be 
taken to purchase and set up a new system if the Cabinet approves the policy in June 
2024. 
 

15. The policy may require all residents on the social housing list to reapply to the new 
banding system. Some applicants may be frustrated by this process. There is a risk that 
some people may feel they have been placed further down on the waiting list, than on the 
points-based system waiting list. It may be onerous for vulnerable people who may need 
support in re-applying. Communication and messaging around this new policy will need to 
be clear. It will need to explain that people’s time on the waiting list is considered, as is the 

Page 18

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/60df2d0de90e0771784b991f/Current_allocation_of_accommodation_guidance.pdf


 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

  7 
 

housing need and other criteria to place them into certain bands. Once the policy is 
adopted by the Cabinet, current applicants on the Housing Needs Register will be written 
to them to inform them of the changes and what they need to do. 

 
16.  The council may consider procuring a supplier which can undertake data migration from 

the old to the new system, to prevent applicants from having to re-apply. If such a supplier 
cannot be procured or it is too costly or technically complex to do, the council will support 
applicants in the re-application process. It will do this through use of its Housing Needs 
and Housing Management staff and will support vulnerable customers through the re-
application process.  

 
Appendices/Supporting Information: 
 
Annex 1: Allocations Policy  
Annex 2: Allocations Policy (short version) 
Annex 3: Equality and Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA) 
Annex 4: Summary of quantitative data from consultation feedback.  
 

 Further Information Available From: 

 

Name: Jamie Brenchley – Director, Housing 

Tel:  023 8083 3687 

E-mail:  jamie.brenchley@southampton.gov.uk 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
��
���
����
�����������
����
���
�
���
�� !��
"##�$
� �!��%&'�
(��)*�+
,--��&�*��)
.�-*�/0������)1��%�2���*���������" ��

!�
��3�$� 4��5$���6-*+*7*-*�/
&�2
8�&-*'*�&�*��9# � � # �:

!�
;�
# < $
� �!=��� !�
!���>�!�;�
# <: !�

��# $
!��?!�� �
� # �:
��
��


��!
!�,@@-/*�+
��
�A�
)�A���BC� $���
���
#��� !��
D=���� �E	��� !��
�#
!=��
��

��#:5������ !�
4�#!��
�#�

��# $
!��
��

��#:
<��
C��� !�5����!���� ��!��������� !�

!�
$
��
#�
4���BC
!��
 !

��# $
!�F�
$ �$����
!$��

!�

!!�
#
��!��
#�GC�
$
!
��
 !$#����
 !

!

��# $
� �!
<��
��C��� !�HI�C��
#
!�#����F
��;� ����!��"��
��� �!
���
������� ��5��$ 
#
#��� !�
�$C����

!�
��!� � 4�
#���,@@-*�&��)
JA�
&%�
���
&7-�
��
7*2=��� !�
� �C
B
��"�
����
�������:
� ��$�
#��?���!�
"�K	�,--��&�*�+
A��)*�+=��
�C�
$��!$ #
�
L��
��$ � �!� Page 21

Agenda Item 8a
Appendix 1



��������	
���������
�
�������������
������������������������
�����������	��	��
�������	�����	������
��	������������
�������
��	�
����������������	����������
����
�����
������������������
�	���	����������������������	��������������������
��	
������������������������
��
 �����������	�
������������
���	�
!������	�
�����"������
����
�	�	�����������
�	��
�������	��	�������������	���	#�������������	$%&'()*)+'��������	��������������	,--')./+'0!���	����12�#���	����	
���
������
����
�	�����������
!���	����32�4���
�����	��	�����������	
!���	����52�6�"��������
���	�
7����
�	
�
�"8�����������������	���	������	�����
��������
�"�������"�������	�����"��������	���������	����
���������
�	�9):(%.;+:/%)<;(-%0'1=� ����������	�>��
�>��	���?
�!��������	�@����
��
��"��
��
�������	�����
����8��	��������
�	��	���
�����
�����	��"���	
�����������
���������
�	�=�A����
��������	
����������������
������������	
�����	
������������
���	����������
��	���������	��������	��
����"�����
��=3=� �������	�����
�������������������	����������	�
������"
�
�����	�1BB!�C1D��������6��
�	��!���1EEB�C�
����	����"
����4�����
��!���3F11D��	������	
��������
�������
���������	��������	��������	�	�����������"����
������	�����������
��	�������������	����
���������
�	�=5=� �������	������
���������������������
���"����
�������������
����
��	�����1GE���������������
�!���3F1F��	��������	�����
�����	7����������	
��	�������	��7����
��
�
��������	�!���	����3=G=� �������
������������	�������������"�������
��	�����������	��	������������	��"����������	���
=�!	���������������������	��
�	��������	����7����	������������	�
�����������	�������6��
�	������
���=����������
��������
������
��
��������������������� �������������	��������������	��"����������	���
������"������������"��=,/H0�*).�%IJ'+:/&'0K=� �������	���?
����
��	���"8������
�������
������
�������2���������������	�����������

�������
�	�L�	
��������	�����
����������������	���
�	��	���L�� ��"�
���
���������������"������
�	���	��������
7���
��	��	������������
�	��	�������������������L�����������������	�����	
����	�����������	
������
L���������������	�
������ ���	�����������
��	
��"������������	����
�	�L��������������
�������
���������	�
��	�����	�����
�	��	���L�	���������	���

�
���������	�
������ ���	��	������7����
������	����	�M�����������	����������
�	�������	
=B=� A	�������	�7���	
�����	���	���������	�����
������
7��������	������
���������������������
�@�"������������������
�#��
=Page 22



�������� 	
��
���
����������������
������������������
��� !��������
��"����
�#��
��������$�������
���""������
���
��
���
����
��
�����
��
���%�����
��""������
��&�"��'��(������
��"��""������������
��������������
�%��
���)��"�������&�
��
����*��������
���
��
�
������
'���
�
�����������������
���"��*'����������
��'��
��
����
�
��
������
+
���
�������&�
��
����*��������
���
��
�
������
'���
�
����������
��������������
���"��*'�����+
���
�������&�
��
����*���
�����
�����
�
�����������������
���"��*'���&
�,����
������
���&
�,���
+&
�,����������"������
����
�
���"�,�
���
�-������&��
�%���
��������
�
���
�����"��

���,�������""'�
�
���������������
�%����
��������'�.�� (��
���
����
'������"������
��&
�,���
���
��������'!��
�"���
���������
��"��(������
��"����
���
�����������
��/������
���
�""��&&"���
���%���#��"��'�����&&"'���
������"������
����
�
�'�%����
�-������&��
��(�������
��������������
��"���
��&�
��*"����
��""�����
��&
�&�
������
����
��"0�%
��������
���
���
�*���"�������������
������"������
��&
�,���
�������
������������
� ��(����&�"��'��&&"������������""������"������
��&
�,���
����� (����&�"��'������
����
�"����"����
���������&�
�
'�������������
!����
��������1����
����
�
����!������"��1���
���!��
�&&"������
���
�
��&�����������"���
�����(������
��"�%�*�&���!�����"���
������,�����
�������
���&���
��&
�,�����
��
�����
���
�&��&"��%����
������"�����
����%����'���
����������&&�
���2�� (����&�"��'������
����&&"'����-���
���
�3
�
������
'����
��"���
�
���%����
��
�#��
��������,����
�
���
 ��
���
�����
��
��
����4�
��1��&"�!�����""�%�
�&��
�����*������������&
�&�
�'��(���
�"�,�
��5���"������
��6����������
���
������
���$����������
����
���
�����
���
�
���
���(�����
�"�����������
����
����
����&�
��������
�����
��&
�&�
�'��'&���6
������,������&&
�,��!�������
�
��%�""�*����������%���������*"��&
�&�
�����*'����������
���""������
����
,�����3
����������������
�����
�
��!�����
�"�,�
��"�
�"�
������1&�������������"����������
�����
����,��%����
�����
��%
�����$��7��
���������
���&����*"�!��������
��"���'���
����
�������
����
�
'�*��������
�������������
�
���
��
���
���&
���"���
����
���(���%��"��*������������*��%��
�����"�
�"�
���
���������
��"����� (����&�"��'������
����&&"'�����""�����
��&��������������8�
�����""�9�
�,�
��������"�����
���
��������:'&�'�;�(
�,�""�
��-����""������
���"��'���
������"��<=>?>@>=>AB�CDE�FGC=>H>�CA>�D<=>?>@>=>AB�CDE�FGC=>H>�CA>�D�I�� (��J��
����������
��/������
��&&"���
��������*��*����� ��=>?>@=���
��* �FGC=>HB>D?��
�����������
�#��
���
�����
������
� �KL�CM�DC@=�N��
�KCEE>A>�DC=N��L�H�L�D������"���������
����������
������������
��������
����*'�����5���"�������I2����O�� PQ�<=>?>@>=>AB�O���
��&&"���
����'�*���
�"���*"����
��
��""������
����������������
��
��
�-��2R���I ��
��S �������������
������������
�,����
���
��"���*�"��'����&�
��
���
����*
�����
������*'�9�
�
�"�:�,�

��
���(��
���
��I�������
������&��&"���
����*
����%�����'�*���
�"���*"�)�O�I/���"����
�O�� ���&�
��
��
����*
����%��������*J������������
����
���
�
�"���� �(%���
���
��&�
��
��J��
�"'�����
'��������������&�
��
���*J������������
����
���
�
�"��O�O/���"����
�O���������""������
���������
���
������"���
�����T"���*�"��' ��T
�"�
� �/���"����
��I22�!������
���!�����������"���������&�
��
��%����
����*J������������
����
���
�
�"!�%����
���"���*"����
��
��""������
��������
��������������
��
��
���
����������������
������������O�S(������
��"��"���
�#��
����""��&&"���
������*����*����""'�
�����
���
�����	8����*����
����
����"���*"����
��
�""������
����������������
������""�"�������������%����
����
����
�����*����""'�
�����
���
�����	8��
�������%����
���"���*"���
��
�"���*"����
��
��""������
����������������
��������������
��&&�
��1�O��O�U(���V�
����
���������
��������"������������
��'�������
��������"���*�"��'�
�#��
���
�����������&�"��'!���
�1��&"�����9�
�
�"�:�,�

��
�����
�������
���"����
��%������&&"'�����"���*�"��'���
������
���������
���
Page 23



���� ������	
��
������������������������������������������������ �!" ���� ���#"���$%���%�!��������&����"����������%�'�#"�'�!��� ��(&���"�����'�#"�'� ��&������������ ��'�)�*�%��' ��$������'�����'�����+�����,��' ��$�'� ����������'���'�%�����&��-.��'���'���+��������!��������������%����� "���������������������+&�/����0�1���2�33415
�3����6�"�&�!��������70�1���2�33415
�3����'��'����#"���$%�$�'������������������������������ �,������������!����������'�!�'���$��&���'���'�������,)��/������&��6�"�&�!�����8��%�8�"������'�������&�/������� ��$�'��&���� ��9�%��' ��'+&�/����/���9��$��&���� ��:�%��' �����&��6�"�&�!�����8��%�8�"������'����'��'�����&��������$�������������&� ���'!������������!���%!��������&�����%�����&� ���������������"�" �������!���%!����$�'���!���!"!�$��,��%��' ����9;<14=5
�3�5��0�1���2�33415
�3(&�'���'�� �!���>������� �,&�'������������������ �������������!�����&�������������������'�#"�'�!��� ��(&��>������� �����"�����"��������!����������$��&������������� )�,������'�/��������'����$���'�$"���&�" �����"�%��%�6�"�&�!�����8��%�8�"�����"���'�&�!���  ��  ���� ������+��?���@����$��'��&���A�� ���$������%�8&���'�� �6�'/��� �����$�'!���%�'� ����������&����"������'����"��&������������������������!!���������"� �����$��&���'��+����>� ����� ������&�" �����������,&����/� ����B��������"� �����$��&��688��'�������&�/��������  �  ��� �!��������&��C��&��(��D�/��#"���$%�����'���'��+�"''����%� �'/����,��&��&��'��"��'��'!���$�'�� ���'���$��,��&���:�%��' ��$��&��������$��&�������������+&� ������� @���������/������!!���������'�/������%��&��D��� �'%��$�E�$���������" ���&��'� ��" ���'��/�����'���'�,� � �'/��������&��'��"��'��'!���$�'�� �����&� ������������&���&� ��'�&�'�����&�,� ���'��"������F,&���%��'���'��%G�����&��� �'/���+ �'/�����'�&� � �'/�������&��'� �'/��$�'�� ������'�� "$$�'����$'�!��� �'��" ���H"'%�������  ��'��� ������%,&��&�� ����'��"������F,&���%��'���'��%G�����&��� �'/���+��/�'����I ���'��������'���' ��$� �'/����!�!��' ��$��&��J'!���K�'�� �,&���'��������� @���������/�����!!��������,&��&�&� �������'�/������%��&��D��� �'%��$�E�$����+$������!� ������" ���(&����"�����,������!��%�,��&��� ��"��� �"���'�E�!� ����J�" ��FEJG����L�!���  ��  ����� �������������������%�'� �����%��'���'���,&�'���&�'��� �"�!���&�" ��������������!� ������" ��� ��&��'�� ���$�'�&�/����!�/�������&�����%�!�/�������&�����%�"���'���M����  �N'����������''����!�����:�� 2�����O445�P4	

P4O435���P�QP4�R�3�S�4T��P�Q�UU
5
�3��T�=P4�4P4314�VR415
�3�WXXYVZ��[�:���C�� ��������'�$�'����)�(&��J�����������$�J���!!��������\"������� ���� ��&���,&����������"�&�'���� ���B�������$'�!���&��'������������ �&�!���������'!����������������'��'���� ���&�%�!" ���� "'���&���'�� �������'�$�'������ ���/�������&��$����,����������'�� ��$��������F ��]]J�F9G)�������,&���'��&�!���  �,��&����&��!��������$���'�� �/����$��&��L�" ����J����̂ ]̂�F����"������&� ��,&���'�������������%�&�!���  �������������'��'��%�����G+�������,&���'���,������"�%��%���%�&�" �����"�&�'��%�"���'� ��������̂_F7G���̂9F7G��'��̂:F7G��$��&��L�" ���J����̂ ]̂�F�'�"���'� �������]:�F�,�G��'�]*�F�,�G��$��&��L�" ����J����̂*:G��'�,&���'�����"�%��������!!������� ��"'����%���%�&�" �����"�&�'��%�"���'� ��̂7F9G+����������"�%������ �����'%��'��/�'�'�,����&�" �����'���&�',� ����/�������"� ��� $����'%�&�" ������������� +�������,&����������!�/�����!��������'�,��$�'���'�"�� ������"������'�"�� �'�������������� ������%+�����������,&����������!�/���������'���"��'��������%�����&���� �'�����$��&��&�" �����"�&�'��%��,&�'��$���"'�����!����&��������,�"�����" ��&�'� &���F����&�! ��/� ��'���&�' G�:�7���������������&����"������ �'�#"�'��������� ���'���/����������������'�$�'�������)�&� ��,&����������!�/��"'�����%�����" ���$�����$�̀�&'��������������  ��'� "������� ������%+Page 24



����������	���
�����
��
�����	�����
����������������������������������	�������������������������	��������������	����������	�����������������
����	
����������������
����	
����	
����	��	�������������	��������	����������
���	�����������	����
��������
���������������
����������������
��	
��������������������
���������	����������	
�����
�����	�
������������������
�	������������ �����!��
��
����	��"�������
������	�������	��	�������	
����	�#���������������������� �����!��
������
�	�����������������$������� ��������
���%���	����������������
���������
�	����������������� �����!��
�������	���������
����
�������������������	&��"������
���
�	�����	������������"�������	���������������������������
�
�������
������������	��
�
�������	���������������������� �����!��
������
�	��'��
�
���!����"� 

���������	�������	�����������������������������������	������
�	���������������������������$����
��!��
�������	���������
����
�������������������	&��"������
��
�	�����	�������������"�������	���������������������������
�
��()*+,-.�-//0�%��  ����
�	������������	�1�����	��	���2�������������������������
���������������	����������"�����	����	����1�����	��	���2�����
��	
����������
���������"����������	���������������������	��������	������������	
��
������"��������������	����	�����%%�3�4�������5����	�� 
���66%������
��	
���������������	��������	������
�	��������1�����	��	���2�������"�������	����������	�����������	
��
������"�� ����
�	����������	���������	����������	������������	
��
������"���������
�	�������������
��	������	��	�������������������"������	���������"���������5����	��$���������������	��	���
�������
���	�3����������674����
���������������������8�� ����
��	
��������
�	�������������������
�	�������������	��������������	����������	
��
������"��������	����	��������������7��	�������������	��������9���	��5����	��:����
������"��������	����	�;�	�� ����� 7��<��  ����
�	�������������	��	������	��	���������������������������	�������	���	�����5����	��$������������"������	����"����
��	
��������	��	����	�������	"�
��	�����	������������������
��
�����	
����6�� ����
��	
������������	��	���
������������������������
�	����	�����5����	��$������������������������������;�	�� �3����������������������������������"4��	��
�	��	������	����;�	��=�3����������������������������������"4�� ����
�	����������
���	���	����

����	�����������
��
�����	
����	���������������������������	��	�����>������������
���������	�5������������������
���������������������
�����
��������7?�� !�����
���������"��������

������������
�	���������������	���	���������������	������������������������
��
����	��������@
���������������������"��������	���������������
���������"�����������
������"�����������
�	��7��� A�����������������
�	�������������������	������
��
�����������	��������"�����������
�	�������������
�	������������������������������	�������A�����������������	��������������������������������"�����������
�	�������������
�	�������������������B)-CD*EF,GH,-.�EIIF,JE-K+77�� '���������
�	�����"�	������������"�	�������	���	����"�	���������"�����A	
�����	��	�����5����	��$��������� ����
�	�������	���	������"����������"�	�������	��������"#
�		�������	���������������"�
�	����������
��	
��2����
���
�		�
���	�
������������L)M/)N-/O+���������"��	
������	"������
�	��������������������������������	��������P������	����Q������ 
��68���������	
������������������	���������������7��� ����
��	
�����
��	����������������@
�����	���
��
�����	
�����"��@�����������

�����������5����	��$��������������������	�������L)M/)N-/O+��������	�����
��������	�	
����������
��������
�������������������������

���������	��������@
�����	���
��
�����	
����������	
����#��������������������
�������	������������	
���	��	���������������������������������
���	�����
��	�������"��	�����������"�����������	
�����������"������	�������������������
����������	������	����������	��	��������
������
�����	������������	�����	��������
�������������	��������������������	�������	�����
�������
��	��������
��������
���������	��������	����R����	�����������������
�����	�S������������	��
�		���������
���������������Page 25



�����������	�
����
���������������������������������
����	�����������
��������������
����������������������
���
�������������������� �����		�������
�������
����
������	
�������		
�	
��������������������������	
����������
����
��
���	��	
�	�
�������������	
���������������
�	�
����
������������
�����������	������ !������	�����������
�	����
���
����������������������������������������	���������������
���

����	
�	�
�����������
��"������������
����������
��
���
���������������������������������������������������������
�#$%&'()*'+'(,�(-�*.�)�(.$)$(�/�� 0���		�������
������������������
�����1�������2������
�����������������������
�����������������������	
�	�
��������������������������������������������		��������������������
����		�
��������
����������������������������	
������������������������������		��������
�����
�������������
��
���������
������������������������������������������
������"������3��3������������������"����������������������������
�������������
���4�� ����������������
������������
����������		����������������������������������5����"���������������������������������������
��������������	�������	
���������		������6������������������������������������������
������������
�������������������
����������
��������7�����		������6��	
�������������������������������	
��������
������������������		�������������������������
���8���������������������������		��������9��������
��������3	����������
�����������
������

���������������������������������������������������		����������

�����
�	
�������������������������������3���������������
��:�� 5������
��������������������������������
������"������������������		������6�7������������������������	��������;��
���
������������������������
�
�����������"����������������������������������������������������������������
������������
���������
�����������
�������������������

�������������������������
���"��������������������������
����"�������
���
�5���������������		��������
����
���<�������=>>������������	
�3���������������
�������
����
����0���	
��	����������������
�������������������������������
��������������������

����������������������"�	������������	�����������
��?@@+,'$A�(-�(B.�%CB.D.EB-'C.F*)%.G�+.(('$A%�HI-D.*'GJ�K�� ������������
�������"����	
������������<����������������������	������������		���������1�
���
�����
���
�������
�������������������6������"���������
�������������������������������������	
������������������������	���������L�� �����������������������
��������������M1������6�
�����	
����������
���
�
"���
�������3���������������������
�����������������������		��������������
�����������	
�	�
�����������"����������������������������
�
�����������
������������������
����������N�����		���������
�����������<	
��������
�����������������������������	������������
����������������������
�������������1�������������1�
���
������	
�	�
������������������
��������������������
����
�����8�9��O�������������������
����������������	��
������������������������������������
���������������3�	��������������
����	�����������
����������������������������	
�	�
�����	
�������������
�������������1�������
�������������	�����
���		��������������PQ�� ���
������������������
�����		��������
����
�������������������5�������<��	������O�
����R���0��	����!
�	�
���8OR0!9��
�		��������
���
����
��1�������
����>�
��8�������
���������������
9�
Page 26



���� �����	
��
�	
��	���
�����������������������������
�������������	�	����������
�������������
��
�����	
���������������������
�������	��
�����������

������
������
�������	���	��������
������	�������������������
����	�

����	���������	���	������������������
���	����
����	
��
���������
����
���
�����
����������� ���
�������
�����
�����������
�
��������������������
������
�����������
����	
��
�
��������
���

����	����

���

������ ��
�
������	�
�����	�


���	�
���
�
�����

�����	������������	���	���������	
��
�����
����
���
�����������
������������
����
�����������
�������������������������
�
������������������������������!�� �����	
��
�����
���
�		�

���������
�������������
�
��������������
	���������������
�����
�������
������������������
��������"�����������	����������������������
�������
���
�����
	������
�������������
���	
��������������������
����� ����	���	�����
����
����������������
	�����
�������
������
����	
��
��#����$
����"������������������������
���������	����������
�����
��������
�����������%�� ����	���	����
��
�
����
	��&�
�
�������
'"����	��	
��������
�������������������������
����	
�������
�������
�
�����������������
��
����	
����
����
������������
��������
�	
��������(�� �����
�����
������������	���	���
���������
�	�
�����
������������
��
���
�����
����


�	�
����
��
��������������������
����	��
��)�"��������
�����
����
�������
�����
��
����
���������
�������	���*��������
��
�����	

�"�����	���	�������������
��
�����
�����
����	
��
�������
�����������������
�������������������������
�
���+,--./01�234/�5�� ��6������
�7�
���������������
�����������	���	��'
����
��������
��
�����
���������
���
�������
���	�
�
�����������
�
�����������������
��������
�����������
���������������	
�������
����
����	
��
���
������	���	�����
��


�
��� ��
�
��
��
�����������������
����������
��������
�����������������������������������
	
�	��
���������������
���
�
��
��������	
�������
����
����	
����8�� ����6������
�7�
���
����
����

�
������������
������������������	��	�
���
������	
�����������
�9:;�-:�4223<�=�� ����	���	�������
��
�
���������
����	
�����
�
�������	�������
>���������
����	
��
�
����$��	��������
���?��
��
�����������
������
�
����
���
�
��
�������������	���	��'
����
��������
���	����
�������	�����
����������������������
�����
��������������������@�� �����	
��
���
����������
���������
�������������A��
�
�����������������������������
����������
�
��
����������
����	
�����
����
�����
������������������
�����%A�� �����	
��
������
��������	������
���������������
����	
��������	�

�	
�����


�
�������
�����������
������	���
	����
����
���	
����
B
����
������������"�	
���A!��=A=���AA5������
���C
���
��
������D���	�D����������	�EF22:G-./0�HF3/,G4I3,�4223.J4/-1�-:�4223<�K:G�L:F1./0%��� �������
��"���������
�
����������
���������������
���"�����������
���
�


�
�
�	�������������M�����
����	
�������������������������������������
��
	������"�	
�����


�
��������������
������
�������	���	��������
�
�����
�����������������
��������
����
���	������
���
����	
��
���	����������
��������������
��������
��������>�����������
��������
�����#������

������"����

��	���
	������	���	���
�����
����
���	
����
B
����
������������"�	
���A!��=A=���AA5�E-FN,/-1%!�� �����	
��
������
���	������������������������	
�����
���
���
��������
�
�����������������������M�����O�����
��P�����
������
��������	���Q������������������������	�����������	������������
����	
���������
��
��������������	�����������������������
�����������!������
�������
������������������	���
��
�
����������	������������������������������
����	
����������������������������������
����������������
�����
�������������������	���
��%��� �����	
����
����������M�����
������
�����
�������������)����
�������������������
�����
�
������
������)����
����������	���������R������
��������������	���
�"��
���
���
��
����	
���������������
����S���
�T���
���������������
��������������
�
��������(���
����	�������������
�%%�� �����	
����
����������������
������
�����
�������������)����
�������������������
�����
"��������
���
����
�����������

���
�����������	���������
���������
������������������������������	���
���������������������������>�����������
����S���
T���
���� Page 27



����������	
� �
�����
����������������������������������
�������������������	� ��
������������ ��
��
�������
���!�����
��
�����������"��� �#��������$�����!�%�!����

�&�� ��� ���� �#������'���������
��
��������
��'��"����
�����������
�&�����
�������������'�������������
������"����
�(�
��'�����)��������������������
�����*������$������+"���
�$��������,
��
��������������-���-#�"��������"���������������������"���������"�����������������������-���� ��������!���������" 
.��/����0�1�2�31���4�15���.��/����0�6
� &���"���"���
�"�!����������������
���!�"�
�������
�����������
��!�"���
�-��������!����"�
��������7�������
�"����
��
�+���������-�
�����
���
����������-���������������"�� ��
����-���������������������������
�������
��!��
������"
�����������-�
����"����
�������"���-�����7�������

�8
� &���"���"��������������� ��������9�����!��������������-�
������ ���������������-�������������-�����������
�"�
�
����������-�������
�����- ��::���������
�-�����"7�����
�;��
������-�
����-��
����
�&�������-�
������-��������������������"����'�����������������"�������������
�����-#�"�������������+���"�����������" �������������� ��������
 �
�;��
������
�<
� :����
��=����
��"��������������� ������������������-��������
��������!��������
��������""�������������
��!�������

��!�����
�&�����������"�����������������"����������
���
������������!������������+���"�������*���!�

�>
� �
���
�����������������
�"�
�
�������!���
��� �-������
��������?@ ��
���'�����
����"�
�������" �����"
���
�����
�
������!���������" ��������"�������
�;��
����������������""�������������������������������
��
�����
�����������
��!���
��"��
	A
� (����
�"�
�
������������!�
��
�����������
��!���
��"��������-��"������
�����
�
�@������!����������
������
��!�

��!�������"�������������
�+� ��""���������������
��������-�������-�����
�����
�"�

���������������������
B1���4�15���	C
� :�
�������
�������
����- �����"���"��������-�����"�������������
�D����D��
�D����E)���������!��������
�"�
"������"��F��
������
��������������-�����!��"�������"����G
�:�
�������
�������-����
����������-������"���"��� ���
��
���
��������
��������������
��
�� ���
�:�
��9����
�
�&������-�
������
���
���������
���������������� ������-����-#�"��������������;��������"�������-��������������������9�����!������
BH1�0�����1II4�31�/J��3��3KL�/1�3���1�2�1��K14�����M14�	?
� &���"���"���������������
��
���
��������"�����"�����������������������"���=�����������
�&��
���
�)�����������
�������������"���"������7���������������������������������������"���=��������!����������
�+��������"������������!�����������
������"�������
����������� ����"����
��������
�����
�"�
"������"��������"���!��
�N�������"��������������������
�� �
���������
�����"�����)�����"���"����������������
������
������
�����������������?<��� ���������
�����������
�&���"���"��������"��"���� ������"���������"����������-�����������
	�
� +�������"�������������� �����"���"���������������������������
�"�
"������"���"���!��!
�&����"�����-�������� ������-��!�����
���
� )�������������
�����
������ ���O������"���!��
�&�� ����������� �����"���"�����������
������"��������
���������������
������"������"���-��
���������
�P�������!�����������
������������������"������-���!�
��������
�������$�����!�%�!����

	�
� N���
��
����
�������������$�����!�%�!����
)������"������������������
��������"������������"���"����"����
		
� N������"���"�����7����������
�����""����������������������"������������
����"���
����������������"���=��"�
"������"��"���!����
���������
������� ����"�����)�����"���"����� ��
�������������
��������"�����"��������"����
 ��������!������
	6
� N����������"������"�
����""�������������������"���"��Q��������!�
�!����
)�����
������"�����������-����
7���������������������-��"�����
�N����������"��������������
����� ��������
�!����
����������
�����)���� ����������������7�������������"��������"�������-������������������
�"�
"������"��������������
RH��31��S����34K2�2����1��1II4�31/����T�����H�K���0U	8
� &���"���"���
�;��
���������� -�� ���"�����������
�@������!������"��������V�
� -�����!�-�������""������-��"�������������
��"��W
Page 28



��� ��������	
��
�����	���
��

�
	�
����	����	����
�������������
�
��
��	����	���	
�������	��������������������

��������
	�������������	��
����	����	����
�����
������

��������
�������

�����
���������
��������������	��
���������
�	
����
�������������
�
����	����	����	������
�����	������	

����
�
����	�

�	���������
�	
���� ��������
�����
	������
	��
����������

���������
��

��	��������
�������������
�����������

��
��
���

	
������
	�
�����
����	����	��������
��������
�	���������

���� �����
�������������
�� �������������
�
����	����	����	���
�����
����	

����
�
����	�

�	���������
�	
������
����
	������
	��
����������
�
������
������
����
���� !�
���������
�	��"����#�
���
$���"������
���������

����	
�
��
�
��
���
�����	���������
������%&�� "������
��
��������
�
����������
�	
����
���
��
�� �������
�
����	����	������
�����	
� �	�����
�������	�����������

��
��������
����
	��
�������������
�	
�
������������
�	
����
����'����������	��
����	�
�����(����������	���������
�����������
����	�
���������
	����� �	
� ����	��
����
	�������
����
�	
� �	
������	���
���������
�	
������������	
� ����������
����)���
�	
��
	�
��������������

����������!��� �������
�
��� ��	�
��

	�
����	����	��$��� �������
������
�������	�����
���	�
����$��� �������
����������
	��������
��
����������

���������	������� ��	��
���	�����
��������
����	����������	
��
�	
��������	���
�� �
����	������
�	��
 ���������

����	������
	��
�������������
���	��������
��
���������
����	�������
������� �	��
���	�����
��������������*��
�
	�
�������	

�����������

���
�������
�����������%+��%,�� �������
�	
���������
�������������
���	�����������	��� ����
����	������ �
����	�
�����
�
��������	���	��	
����������������������-.�� /��
����	�
�����	
�������
��
��������
���������
��
�������	
�
����������
�	
�
	����
�����
������	��
 �	������������������	��������

�
 ���	���	���
��
����������
�	
��
����������
�	
������������������
���� ����
���
��������������

�01234�56785948:;�43<=>43?371:-��� �����	�
�����	�'���
��	
�����	�������
��	�����
�
�����
 ��@	���	��
�����	���
���������
������� ���������
���������������

��������	
�
�����������	�
���� �
��
����
���������
��	����(�����
�������
���������
����	�
�����������	��
�������� �
�����
������
��
�������
�����

��A������
��	�������
�����	�
���

�
����	��� ��/
������������
���'�
	�����
�������
�� �����������
������
���BC3�83:>C76138�D49D341>3:-��� @	���	��
����	�
�������
���	���
�����	���
�	
�����	���
�����������
������������������

���E	���)��������	����	���
�������������������

��
	����%.�	��	�����F�
�����������	������	
�
���G	�����������
��HD3I>65�5311>7C�:I23?3:�678�:37:>1>J3�531:-K�� L�����	
��� ��
����	�
�����	��	
��	���
���	������	���
�����

������� ��������
	��������

���M����������

�
���������N���
����	��������������

�
����������	����
�����	
������
�����	��� ��
���� ����
���
�	�����������
������	��
 �
	����
��
��
��	�����	���������

���	���������������	���	���
������������	�
�������

� ��	
�����
���
��� �����
�	��������������������������
����
��G	�������
������
������
��
��
 �
�������
�����
��	����������
�
������� �
	���'�������
��
�
���������	����
��������
���� �������		��������
	������-O�� ��������
�������� ����	����� �
	��
�����������	���
����������
�������������
����
�����

���
�����

���	����������	��� ��/
�
���������
�����
��	����� ���		���
	���'����M��
��
������

�
�N�� ����	��
������
�	
��������� �
�����
������	��������

��
	���'�������
��
�����������	�������	�
	
�������
��	����
��������

�
��	��
�����	���
 �-%�� @���������

�
������������
����
��
������

�
��������	
� ���������������
�� ��	�
	
��	���	�����
����	�
�����������
 �
	���������
��	��������	��� �������(�����
�� ������������
������� �
�������
�	
������������
 ����
����������������
����
�
��G	��������	���
 ������
�����

�BDD5>I671:�P29�643�791�6Q53�19�Q>8R9=:>7C�P>12�S643--�� �����	�
������
���
����'���
	��
�
�	
��
	���������	���������	
�����������
��	���
�����������������������
��	��������G	���
����
��"�������������������	������
����
��

��������T��������
�
�
��������� ������
�����
���
�	������
�	
��Page 29



��������	
��	���	�����	�����	��
�������	��
�������	�
	���������������� ����	��
��	������������������
�����
����	�����	
����	������
���
�	�����������
�������
���������������	
���	��
��	���������	
��
�������	���������������	
��
���

	
��
�������
��	
������
���	��
��
�����	
���
 �
���������������	������������
�	���������������������������	
���
�!���
���	������
����	������
�!�
�����	
��
����
����������	�������	�����	!	�
	�
���"�����	��
��	�������������	!��	��	
������
���	��
��
�����	
���
 �
������#

��	��������
!�����	�������	
����������
�������	������������	�����������
�����������������$�� %���������������	
�����	��
����������	�������	����������������
����������	�!�
�������������������	
��!	�	����������������	
������������
��
���
������#����	
	�����
����
���
������

�����	���	������#��
��	������

�����	�������������	�
�!	�	���������
�������������
��
���
��������������&	
�	��'��
����
����	������	��
��	������	��������	���������������	

�����	�
����
�	�!	�	�����������	
����	������	�����

�����
�������������	���	��
�!�����	
�����
�()*+,-)�+./+-.,0�)1.-2,�3-,�4�� #��#�	�����5
���
���%�
����6���7#5%68����������	������!������	��
��	��������
����
��	���������	��
��	�	������
���
��������������
����	��
����	�����������������������������	

�������������	��
��	�����
�	������
��������
��������
������������
��	�
����������������������������9�� :���
��������	������������������#5%6��	������
�����	��;����	����	
����
	�����7;�8�	�������������
����
��������	������������

����	�
���	��	�	��	������	
��
����
����	����

�	���������
�����	�����������!���<�� ����������
��	������	�	������
���
�����������������������������	��
��	�����=����	��
��	����	
��	�
������>�
����������������
��	
������
��	������	�����������������

�����������
���������	�������	!	�
	�
���
���
����������!�
�������	
�	��������������	!���������	
�����������
�	�!�
��
�����������
���������
��
���
����!��	��	��
��	�������������
���������
�������

������	�������?�� #5%6��	
���	�	�������������������������
@�����	
�����������������#5%6�	��
��	�����������������������!�	��������	�����

���������
	���������	��	����%�
���
���	�������	��
��	�������	!	�
	�
�������	�
��	�	������
���
�������
�������	 �����������������������	���������
���
�����	
��!�
����	
����A�� #��
��	�����	�������	����
��
�������������	�������#5%6��	��	�
����7����������	
�
������	��
��	������	��8��#��
��	������

�������
������������	�������
�#5%6���	�������	��	�������
�������������������
����
���
��������������	��
��B.C-D,�(EFGH�I�� #��	��
��	�������
����
���	��#5%6��	��	
�������������J
�������������K������	����
����
��������������

�������
�����	������	��	��
�L5�
�	����
����	�
�����
�	!���
�	�����������
���
��������������������	�
���	��
���������
���

����������	���	��	
���
��	
�������
�������������
���	�
�����
���
��������
���������	
�&�
��������	
��	
��J�	�
�����
����!����
���	
��	
�����	��
�!	�����	����	�	���
�������
������
����������������
��J�	�
�����	�������������	
��	��
������������������
���
���	��������
	
����
�������	
������������
���'��
�����
�����	�������������	!���	�
��
�� ������������	����	
���������������

���������	���	���!����

�
���
!��������'��
����������	�������	��������	������
�����������������
�	�����

����
����������
���

���������	���	������
	
����!����


�	!������	��
��	��������	���
�����������M�� ���
���	�������
����	������	��
��	��������	���
�����������	��������
������	�����N������
���
���������
������	������

����������
�����������	����
��
�����
�������	����������	�
��������������
��
��������	��
��	������	������� '��
�������	��
��	��@��	
�	�������������

�����������
����	��
��	���������	���
������������

�����>��������������
�>��
���������

�����������������������	��
��	���	���������������	���
�����#5%6�������	�
�����"��	���
�����#5%6�	��
��	���
������	������
����	��
���
�����������

����
����
�����������
���	���
�����	�����

��������������	��������
��(33/2*,1DC�O/PH1DCQ/R�,O-�2/PD213�S*T-H�)-21H1/DH���� ����������
��	 �������������	�������������	��
��	����������������
�������
�����������"������	��
��	����
����
��������
�������U�"����V Page 30



����������		
���
�����
�����
���������	�
������������������	�����	��	���������������		
���
�����������������
������
����������
���������������	
������
��������
�����������
��
����������� � !

������
��"����������

���#���

�!

������
���������
���

���������
�����
��$%&'()(*+ ,(+(-.-�/&0&/�*1�2.34*5()23(*+6�7�������		��
�� 8�
����!

������
��"�����������������������������������
 8�
����!

������
��"�������������
����	
�����		
���
���
�9���
��:����
��;������������ 8�
����!

������
��"�������������
������
�������
��������������
�
� !

������
��<�
�����������
������7�������	��	��������=��
����7��
��> !

������
��<�
�����������
����
����		
��
���
���

�����
��?@���
���
�7�
������������
�������
��������������������
�� !

������
��<�
����!�����������
������	����
�
����
���������������
��������
����7�
�	��
��� ������������:����
�AB��	���
�����	�
��� ������������:����
��C � D������
��
��������#�������7���������������	��������
�
�������������
�������
�����������
��
��
��		
������
 �D�����������
������������	
�B�������
����������
��������
������		
������
 �D�����
�
��������
���

����

�������������
�!

������
����������������������������
��������
��������
�����7�E���#�
���
��������
��������7���������7�FG'&H3(*+)�3*�H*/('I�J � "������
�

�E��B��	���
�
���������

���������������

���������
������������
�����
����
�	�
������������ �9
��������K��
��
K�
��������
�@L�M����?J�N�"�������8�����������
������
E�����������������:����
������������
����������������������#���
�B��	���
����	�
���E���7���������
�
�	����������������#�������������
�
�������� �D������
�������������������

��

�����������
7�����B��	���
�
����������
��������
������������
��
�����������
���
������������
������		
������
��������N�����
� �D�����
��
���

���#���
��������
���

���
�7�
����
���������
�����
���#�
��������������
��
�
���
�$�����		
���
�>�����������������
��
�������
�����
���7�
����
������		
���
�>����
�
������������
��D��������
��	������
��
����	������������		
���
�>����
�
�����������
��D��������
��	������
��
����	������������		
���
�>�����
���������
��������
�
�� OIH&�*1�H5*H&53I�5&P.(5&Q�? � D������
��
��������#���������������������������������7��
��
���
����������������������B�����
���������	��	
����������:����
��6������� �D�������
��������������
��
�������
���������������	�����	��	�����������		
���
�����
��		
����� ��
������
���
�������	�����	��	����E��
������������	����������������E��������
��
����������
������������	����������
���7��
��
��
���������������
����������������
� �R����B��	
�E�����������������
�������
���������
��
���������������������� �@ � D������
��
��
���������	��	��������������
�������
����������������
��������� �D��������$����
������������������������	�������������
������
��������������	��	������� � ����	�E�������E�
���E�
�7�
������������	�����
����������7�����
��������������
���������������	������
���
�������������	������
����	����������������������
��������
�����������
��#�������������
�����	��7����
������		�������7���� �L � R����		
���
�������	�����
�������:����
��6�������$Page 31



���������	
��	

��

�

����	������
�������	��������
��������������������������	������������������	�����
	������������
	������	�
�������������������
	�����	
��

�

��������������������	

������������������������
	�������������������	
�������	
����	�������	��	������������	�����
	����
�����������	
��	

�����������
�������
�����
	����
�	�������	�
�����	
�	
������

���������������������������
���������������
�������	
��
������
	���������������������
����������������������	
�������
��	����	��	��������������	�
�������
	����
��	��	������
���	�	�������
����	
������������������������	
�����������	�����
��
��
���������	���������	�
�������
	��������������
	����
�������������
�

�����������	
��	

����������
���	��
��
������	���������	
	��
���������������	�
�����������	
���� �� ���������	
���
����
������	������������������������������������������������
	�����	����������	�
��������
�����������	��
�	����
�������������
�����������������
���
�����	��	�����
���������������
�������
��	���������������
	���
	����	��
��!�� ���������	
����
���������������	
�	���	��������������
�
������
��
���������	�	�����������������
	"����������������
	����
������
	�	�
�������������������
�
�����
��	
��������������������������
�������
��
�
�����������	
���
����������
���
�������������������������
�
��	

��
��

������

������������	������	��	����������	��
�������
�������
	����
����	
	��
���
����	
	�
��	�����	
�����������
���	�	��������
������
��	�

������������������
�
���	������������������	�������
�	����#���
�������
�
$���	

��
��

������
�

	�	����
����	���������	�	���
���������������������������	

����������	
����	������	��	���������
	����
�������%�	�������
�����������������������&'()�*+�,-*,)-./�-)01'-)2�3�� ���������	
����
	���
�������

��	�������
���	

��
��

�����������������������	�����4����
�
5��
	��
�����
��������63��������5
���������������
����
	���	���������
���
��������
�����

�

������	��
�������������	���������������7�� ������	
���������	��������
�8�
������������69��	

�����8����������
������������������� ����������������8���
�
��������������
�
����
�4:;<'=/�>'() &'()�*+�;??*<<*2;.'*@A	��
�����
�� A���	��������B��������������
�
�
	�	����
�������
� C��B�������D��
������
�����
	��
�����
�����	��4C�����	
�������	
����������������69������	
����������������63�������
����
�8�	��
���
�
����������
�B
	�
	��
�����
	�
���	���
E������
����� ���B�������D��
������
�����
	��
�����
�����	��4������	
������������
	���
�8�
�����
��
���������������69D��
������
�����
	��
�����
�����	�����������	
�����������63D��
������
�����
	��
�����
����	����������	
������	��
��	���������������
�8�	��
���
�
����������
��
	�
	��
�����
	�
���	���
E������
������ �������������
D��
������
�����
	��
�����
�����	��4��������	
��������������������63�������������������69�����	��������
�8�F������	
��������������������63�����������69B6!��������������������69�F	�����	
����������9B6!�	��
���
�
����������
�B
	�
	��
�����
	�
���	���
E������
������ F�����������
�G�� ���������	
����
	���
�������

��	�������
���	

��
��

�����������������������	�����4����
�
5 Page 32



���������	�
���������
���
����
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����
��������
�������� ���������
�����������
�������������������
�
������������	������������
�������
�����
�� ��
���
������������	���������������
������		�� !"#$%#&�'()*+*�,�� ��������������������	�
���������
��	�����		�����������������
��������-�������
����������������
�������������������������������������	
��
������������������������������!"#$ !"#$�#"+* .*/%#%0%1#2 
�� 34&*#0�)15'%#&�#**$'6�2�7%/*80)4*"0*#%#&�%77#*''�14'5$$*#�$%'"9%7%0: �����		����������������������������������������	����������������
��;������
�����	���������
����������
�-���
�������������
�
�������������������	�������
�����������-��
 �<�����		�����������������������������������������������	������
�����
�����-��������
���������������������
����������	���������-��������������;����������	��������-������������������������������������������������,�� 34&*#0�)15'%#&�#**$'6�=)1'*�>)1�4*?5%4*�54&*#0�4*8)15'%#&�"'�"�4*'570�1/�@%17*#(*�14�0)4*"0'�1/@%17*#(*A�%#(75$%#&�%#0%+%$"0*$�>%0#*''*'A�"#$�0)1'**'("B%#&�'*4%15'�"#0%'1(%"7�9*)"@%154�14�$1+*'0%("95'* C��������������������������������������������������������
�D��
������������������������������������������
������������
�
������
����������������
��E����	�
��
�	����FG��H��I������		������������������������
�����	�����
�	
��������
������������������-��
����������������-��������������
���

����������������J�����������������
�����K�� 3#$*4�1((5B"0%1#�LMN�9*$411+�B41B*40:O �����		������������PQQ����������������E�
���������������������������������������������PQQ��
������
������������������������������PQQH����������
�����	��������
����������K����
�����
��
��
�	
�	�
�������������;������������������������
�����
������
�	
�	�
��R�� S//%(%*#0�5'*�1/�T15'%#&�U01(V W		����������������	����������������
�������������
���������������	�����������������������������������
�
�D��
���F�� .*("#0�8�4*&*#*4"0%1# PQQ�����������������������		
��������������������
�����
������
�������������������
��������������������������������	�����
���������������������������� .*("#0�8�$%'B1'"7 PQQ��������������������������
��
�D��
����������������������	
�	�
������������	�
������������	��������

Page 33



� ��� �����	
��
�������� ����������������� �����!�����"���# � �����$��� $��� �#���%�!���&�'!�"�("�)**�!�$ ����+,�-./���$��� �� �$"����#�0 ���1��#�� #�����"�����##�$������.�� 2�3�4�
55�6���
��78�9�34

��64
6�4��: ;� ����������������)**�� ����������� ������1�����!���&��������������0��&��� �)**��� �<�����!�$ �����!�� ���� �� =�����&�.�( $���#����� ��"���$�������>��&����#�0 �������#��� ����� ��"�,�� ?@@�5���������
@�	
����A�B�
5C ;� ����������������)**���!������ ����������� ������1�����!���&��������������0��&��� �)**��� ����$����&�0��&�!��&��!�$�1�������������!���&������ "�������& ��� D!�� ����E�� F�4��G��H�4���
H��IJ� K� � ���"�!�&�� �������������(  �����> $��1� �<�1��� � $�������##�$�� $���$�������$���$!�"��1���� ���� �� $�!�$ ���� *���$� ����������� �)**���!������� ����$����� �$"�1����$ � �$ �����0��&<���� ��(� �������� $�#�0 ��������$ � �$ ����!���(� �����##�$���������0�$��&����!�������������������� ��;� ��!#( �����!� $�!�$ ����������0�����������( �!(L ������������!���D!�����&�  $�������� M�� N66
�5�����O��P��O
�
4��
4��5���A
4����������3�F8IFQ ��������������������"��1��� ��(�0 ���� &��� �������� ��� �� $������0��&��������#�� �� ���������#�0 �1��#�R��$*.S*E�F ��� 	
��
����T4�H����
��
4�U�
��@����� ������������� $��� ��� 0 ���������� �� 1�$!�� ��!�$ �������V��1�� �%�!���&������++W�("�)**.�� J55�6���A���������4�X�
H�454
O3�3�
4�������@�5�
4��P
����A�5
�3���
�� �������������0��&������ ����#�� ��1��� ����$�������$ 1�� $������ �$�=��,�� ��3�5�
�YO�
@�4�����3 ���������������������� �� $�# $��������� �1�� �� �������#�0 ���# <�����!$��&�&��!�$��� ��� $������$���(����"E�� 	�43�P�6 ����������������  $����#�0 ������������!�����������"���)�!���#����<��� � �1���!� ����#  ��������  $���!�$���!� ���$���������� #� �0 �������� ���M�� U�AP���
��
H� �����������������0 �(  ����� �� $�!�$ ���� �Z[�&������\�0 ]� &!���������;����(��$����������"�� &��$� ����1�����#��"���� ���� &��� ������������(� �#�"�����"�
Page 34



� ��� ������	
����
��
������ ����������������������������������� �!� "������#���$��������� �����!� ��������������%������������&�'�� �
(�	�)�*�����+�+�,� -����������$������.���!�"�%���$�"�%.����� ��������������! ��"�� �%���!��"�� �"�����/������� �!� "������#�$����� �����$�.�"�%���������"����%�����%��"��-01�2�� 3�*�����4�*���
��*��+
��
��
4� 5�� ������.�!��� ����$�������%�������6�"��#�� 7�#���� �"�� �������"���"���"�������"���".����#��� ���������"�.�"� ����1���" ���-����������811���.������ �����"�������� ��"��#� ��"����"������9��!:�� ;�<(����=�����
 -����������$�����9�� �#.��"��� ����##� ���#��������"�����$����%�������"����>��"�?�#� ���@��������A2�� -�������������>��"�-��� �-'�������������$����. !������.���!����"�&�$���� �������������%��"�#� �2���������������#����.���%��� ��� ���"��������%�������9����%������%�"���7�������.�����$�����.����"�����������������# ���%�""��!���"���6������"� ����##� ��#��������"��������#�����������������>��"�-��� �-'� �#.���������##� ��#��������"��������"�������.�������������#��"�����##� �$��� ������%��7���������������$����%�������"����������%��"������� �9��.�������.���"���#���������������"�"����� �9��.������9����%��"7������$����%�� ���9�"�# �������B�.���!�C��"��D�!���� �A:�� /�� ������%������������$�� �������������$���� �������!��#������ ��6��#��� ����"���9��������� ����9����.���!������������%��!�9�����"� �����##� ��#��������"�������5������$��$����!�9��".�������"� ����������������������E��� ����#�� �#� �����������������$����%�������%��������6����"� �����##� �������� �� ����#�� �#� ������F �� ����$����%��!�9���������. �� ��6��#�� ����� ���9�"��������G.��6���������%�������# ������#�������������� �#.��������##� ���"�������.�������������#��"������##� $��� ������%��7���������������$����%�������"����������%��"������� �9��.�������.���"���#���������������"�"������ �9��.�����9����%��"7������$����%�� ���9�"�# �������B�.���!�C��"��D�!���� �H���)������H
4�����+�;�I	=*
I���AJ�� 8�.���������1����1�.������������ ������������"�� "�����"���"�������9�������������������$����������.���!�����!������ ���������"�� ���". ����/����������������$����%����"�������.���%����##� ��#��������"�������/����$����%���������.�������$�������� ���9������������.���!��##�����K##� ����"��.�"� ������%�����$����.�.�����%�������L��6�0#� 0��6�E�� ��� ����/������.�����������##� �$�.�"� ��.������������.�� ���9� � �$"��!����.������AM�� �#�����������E�����"�� "��������.���!������������7����� ����"�� "�$����"��� ������#���������������"�������9����������%�����/����$���� �G.��������-������������� 9������������"� ���6��!�����"� �����##� ��#��.���%���L��6��#� ���6�E��������"�������/�������! ��"������"��� ������ ��%�������6��!����������.������� ���9����#���� ���#������������"�� �9�����!���������.���!���.�������D�G.�����$��������%���! ��"�.�������������"�� "��! ������� ���� ����������������$�������.���������"9� �������� ��.����!�9������&N��	�	���	����4�*��
4�*I*
O+	�)�OP	IP�=
�������*	
(��P����P�P�Q�*+AR�� /�����.�����$������9����!���������� �.�����������"���.�����#������9� � �$"��!���"�$��������"����� ���"���7��#����7�� ��9����%�������$����"���"��$����� ������������������������������������. !������.���!����"��%��"����������0%�0�����%�������������6���������������$�����������"�� ���������"���������%�����$����%���##� �"����� ����������"������.�"� �F� ��S����#����B�.���!�-����AAM�;�<(�	�)����
<<�*�
<��II
��
+��	
�AT�� /�����.�������������%��!�������������!������ ���. �����##�����������"�� �9�"��9��.��#� ���������������.����� ���D�#.�����#��������"��������������%. "��������.��������##�������D�#.������#���.����0�$��"��������"��������.���� ���������#� ��.�������/��������������"�� �������#��. �����������"�� �������9������������#���������������������%��"� �#.����2��##� ���#�������"������". ��!�������#���#����� ������������7������$����%�������"������>��"�?�#� �M����������#�������������������� �#.���������� ��##� ��#��������"�����7������$����%��� ����"�����#������������!� � �G.� ������9�7���"����� �������������$���%����������"�
Page 35



�����������	��
�����
���
���� ������������������������� ���!"�����������#� $���%�&����� ����������������� ��������������� ���!"�����������#� $�����$����� $���������#�����#������'������ ���� "������(�'��������&����� ���)���&������� ��� #�� ���!"�����������#������� ��&�&��������������� ��$%�������(� $�����&����� ���)��������#�#����*��������&� "��*%���� $$�����#� ������ ��*������� ���&��������������&����( ������� ����������� ��������&����� ��(�'������������+�	�,���� )������ ���� �� $�� "�����-."���$����� ��/��������$ ��0������ �1 ��2�-3�����&2�0��"���� ���4�,5���!"���������� "������ �������&������ � ��� �� $����������������$ ��� �������������$� (� ����������� $�����3�����&�#� ����&�� �( ���� ����������� ���'�"��# �'�,�,�� ) �!"���$%�� �*��� ���&���&�$ ������6������� �( ��7������������("��8*������9�������� ������ "���������������3�����&:��������� ��*������$�������"�&�����,;;�-<2=��������&�� �( ���� ������ �����"�� ���%�&��������� ��� �&����&����:���&�� �( ���*���"��������������# �'���������&�������:� ����&�� �( ���� ���'��"����� $$��� $�# �'�,�4�� ) �(�'�������&����� �>������ "�����#������'����� ���� "���$��� ����"�����8����&����������&? ����(����'���� ��������*��#����# �'���&�� (�:����������*����%� $������� ��>���'������� ���� "�����������:�������"��� $�����# �'���&�#���������(����� �� ��"�����������������*����� ����� �� (�: ��������� ����$��� ����"������(�&������ �&��� �����&�����&����:����������� $�����# �'�� ���������&�#�������$���"���� �( ���# "�&����"����������� ��� $� �� ��"���%�� ��(�� ���������(�� %(��������"(�������� ���� �������,�<�� @ �"����%�# �'�����9��"&�&�$� (��������������(������A �'>�#�������� ��%��� ��=���(>�(��������������"��� ����������%�� # �'������ �����&�������������� ��9��"&�&����������BCD,�E�� )���0������ �F"%�����(����� #��( ���� "�������������� �*"%�������� "������ (�������&��� "���,�5�� )���� "�����#����� �� $$������������������ (( &��� ��� ������������#� ����������������������� �*"%���������� �>� ��#� �����"*G����� ���� "��� �&����"����&������������� �*"%���������� ���
H����IJJK��I��
��L�����L�L�
�����
,�;�� A����&���&����#�������� �������������������� �>� ��� �(�'����� $$��� $�� "����>������ "�����#����� ���&�����%�'� #�����'$��� ����)����#��������"&���������'�� � ���������&�������&�� ����������������)������"���#�����#����*����'������ ���� "������"&���� ���#�����(��������&������������������"�����*����$���=� "��&���&�#�����(�%��$$���� ���������&������M ��9�(���>���'� #������ �%� $��� ����� ������=�� �����*����� "���N$������ "������ ���&�����������'�� �*���  ���������������(�%&���&��� ��� ���������������������� �� �����O "�����0�������>� ��� ��� �(�'����� $$��� $���� (( &��� ���)���� "�����(�%��� �������������� $$���� ����������%���� $���� (( &��� �� ��� ��������������� $��������%�,�P�� N��� ���&������������$��� �������� "�������� ������������ ��������������&���� (( &��� ���������%�������*����� $$��&����� *�� (������*�������&��O #����>������ "�������� ��9����������&"�%�������&� �&�� ��� "���&�� $������������ ����������%�)����$ ��>���������������%�� �*��������������&�� $���&���&"�����������������������������&�� $�����#�&����������� �"���� ��,���� N�������������&����� �� ��������(������������ "�����#����� ���&��������������������$��� ����)��������"&������'�����������#� $O�����>�Q ����>�R��� ����Q� *��� ��S������>���&� ������������������"� �%�����������39�(����� $����"���#�����#����*�� ���&���&�����"&�8 Page 36



���������	�
����
��������������
��
��
�����
������������������	�
��������������	�
��	���
������������	�
	��	�

����
���
����������
��	��	�����
	��������������
�������������������	����
��	��	�����
	������������������
�������������
��
��		����
����
���

�������������������
���������������	�������������������������	������
�����
��������������� !"�#$��%$&�!$�'�()&"$ � *�!+$�&�+),"� *�"�!,�!�) �� #�-&�,#��&$.$ !�) /012� 3���	��
	�����4������������
��������������4���������������������	�������	�����������������2�5����	����
����������6����
�7�������������
���������
�����
�������������
����

�
�	����
�������		�����2�3���	��
	����������8���������������
��������
�
����������	����
9���	�������
�������

�	��
	�����:���	��
�9���
�
	���������
��9���
4��������
����

��
��������
��������
�����	��
	���������8������
���
����������
���������	����
�2�3���	��
	��������8����
���������	�����������������;�	��5��������������������������<����
���=���
�>
��������2�3���	��
	���������������������
��������
��������	���
��������9������������9�������
�������������������	������

���
�9��

�������	����
����
�	���
��2//02� ?���������	��
	��������	�������
9����������	����
���������������
��������	��
	�����3�
�
	��=���
�����������
��
	�
	��	4�2///2� ?���������	��
	���	�
��
�����
������	����
���������6����
��7������������������
���
�9����������4���	���
��
���
��������
���������
���	���
������	���9���������
����
�������������������
����������
�����@����
���
����A�	����6����
��=���
�5	��B0/C2�3��	��
	��������	�
��
�����	����������
���	���D��D	���������2//B2� >���
������	�
��������������9����������9�����������		����
����
�������������
�������������������
��
�9�����	��
	��������
���������������

���������������������
�
�
�2�>����������������
���������������
�
���
���
�����������������������	�
����������
��
�����6����
��7�������9�����	��
	��������	�
��
���������������������	����
����������������������������
���
�
����4�
����	�2//C2� 3���	��
	�������������	����������
����������
��������������������������
	����	���
��������
��������
������
�
��
���
��������������
������	�
�����������
��������	��2�?�����������������	��������	��
	����������

����	�
	����
������	����
2E�!���&)!$�!�) //F2� >
��������
������������
��

�
�������
��
��		��
�
	�������G����@����	���
�����������
��

�����	��
	���������
���
�	��
���2�G����������
���������
���������������������������
�������
�������	����
�9���������:��	���
��������
�����	�������������������	��
	�������������������������	����������2H).$& � �$I$.�$(�� #��J��$J$!�!�) K02� 3��������	�����������������
������������������5���	����
��3���������4��������������
����������������������������
��

	��
��
����	�������������2K/2� 5�
���������������8����
�����������
������
�����

�
���	������

�����	�2�3�������	�����������������
��
����
����
��������������
����	����$ #��$"���$ #�L�MN�E$-� $#�, "�!�"-��!)&'�+),"� *���!$*)&�$"MO�P+�&$#�-�����!�$";�	4�
����������������������;�	4�
��������������4��	��
;�	4�
���������������
��
��?2QRO�E�"&$���&
Page 37



��������	�
	���
�����	������	���
��
����
�	������	�������	�����
����
�	��
�	���	�
�������	��
��
�������	������	���
����	������������������	�
��	
�	�
�	�����	�������������	�����������	���	�	
�	��������	�������	��	�	�������	
�	
��	�

���	�  !"#$%&'	()*+"("%,	!$(,)(	 (- )(&./�����	�����	�
	���	���������	��	���	����	0
��	
�	����	�
����	������	1��2�	
�	��
�����	��3�����4	5����������	678669	�
����
�����
�	
�	�
�	���	�
�����	����������	�
�	����	0���

��	��	�
�������	�	�
����
��	��3�����:;�	�  !"#$%&'	()*+"("%,	<-+'"%,	=-(	-!>)(	 )- !)?��������	����	@A	5
�	B
���	����������	0
��	����	@A9	
�	

���	��
���	��	�������	�����	�
����	�
������	��
	����	�
	�

�	�
�C
�����	�
�	��
���	����	@A	���	

��	����	��
�����	����
��:C
�����	�
�	��
���	����	@@	���	

��	����	������	��
�����	
�	������	0����	����
��:?��������	����	@@	5
�	B
���	����������	0
��	����	@@9	
�	

���	��
���	��	�
����	�
�����	�
�	����	@AD�	��
	����	�
	�

�	�
�C
�����	�
�	��
���	����	@@	���	

��	����	������	��
�����	
�	������	0����	����
��?��������	����	@@	5
�	B
���	����������	0
��	����	@@9	
�	

���	��
���	��	���
�����	������	���
��
����
��	��
	����	�
	�

�	�
�C
�����	�
�	��
���	����	@@	���	

��	����	������	��
�����	
�	������	0����	����
��:�  )%>"E	FG	H),"'!$&"-%	$%>	(),+!$&"-%'I��	����
���	���������
�	���	�
���	
�	��������	��
�	0���	�
���������	��	�����������I��	JKK7	C
�����	?��	5/���	LM9	��	�������	0�	���	C
����������	?��	NAAN	���	���	�
������	?��	NAJJI��	C
�����	?��	JKK7	5/���	LMM9	��	�������	0�	���	C
����������	�������
�	?��	NAJOI��	P3������	?��	NAJAI��	Q����
�	
�	M��
�����
�	?��	NAAAR����
�	JO	S��������	?��	JK6KI��	T
������	?0���	?��	NANJI��	?��
����
�	
�	C
�����	53����������
�	��������	�
�	?����	Q
����	/���
����9	5P������9	��������
��	NAJN	����������������	������
��	��������	T����0��	NAJU?��
����
�	
�	C
�����	���	C
����������	5�����0�����9	5P������9	��������
��	NAA7	5��	�������9��������
��	����	0�	���	R��������	
�	R����	����	
��	����
�	��
	���	0�	�����0��	�������	0����	�	����
�	��
�	�0�
����0B���	�
	���������
�	�
���
�:?��
����
�	
�	?��
��
����
��	V�������	�
�	�
���	C
�����	?���
������	��	P������	5WCS�V	NAJN�	��	�������9/�

�����	�
����	�
�����	�
�	�
���	��
����	R�����
��	��������	
�	�
����	�
�����	���
����
��	�
�	�
���	����
������	��	P������5TS�V�	T����0��	NAJU9M���

���	������	�
	�
����	�
�����	�
�	���0���	
�	���	?����	Q
����	5WCS�V�	NANA9M���

���	������	�
	�
����	�
�����	�
�	
������	
�	�
������	�0���	5WCS�V�	NANN9�����	�
	�

�	���	�
����	�
�����	���
����
�	NAJ@?��
����
�	
�	�
�����	5X����������
�	S�������	�
�	�����	�
	W

�9	5P������9	��������
��NAJ@�K7O�	���	�����	���
	���
���	���	?��
����
�	
�	?��
��
����
�Y	V�������	�
�	S
�������	������	��	Z���	NAJN�	���������������	T����0��	NAJU	���	�����	�
	W

�	������
��	��������	������	��	W����	NAJ@:I��	C
�����	���	/�������	?��	NAJ7I��	C
����������	�������
�	?��	NAJO:I��	/
����	���	0���	�
��������	����	������	�
	���	���	�������
��	��3���������	����������R��������:	 I��	C
�����	?��	JK6@0:	 I��	C
�����	?��	JAA7�:	 C
����������	?��	NAAN�:	 C
������	�������
�	?��	NAJOJ:
Page 38



��� �����	
��	��
�
�	������	������������ �����������������
�� ����������������������� ��������	������
�����	������������ ����
�����	��	����������������� �� !������	���������"#�� $%������������������ &����'��������	������������ $���(��	�)	��	�*+������,����
�����	��*��������-�	�� ����	�
�
�������������
�
������	����������	���������	
�*'��������-�
�
������	����./�0�����1"�2���������	���������	
�*$	
��	�-�
�
������	������/�0������12��"���������	���������	
��	����������	����*$��
�3�����-�*$	
��	�-�
�
������	������4�0������1���"�*������	���-5������������	���������	
��	����������	����*$��
�3�����-�*$	
��	�-�*���	���	�-�
�
������	���������������	���������	
�*6�����������	�!������������������������-�*������������-*$	
��	�-�
�
������	������/�0�����1����5������������	���������	
��	����������	����*
�7��,�'���������-�
�
������	���������������	����������	
�*6�����������	�!������������
�
������8�7�-�*$	
��	�-�
�
������	�����9/�0�����91��.5��������	
����������*�������	���'������	�������������������-�*$	
��	�-�
�
������	������4�0������1����!��������:����	�����������	����������������	;�
����	������������������������4�<�	������4��(�����4�0�(���3�������'��7���	
�������������	
�����������(��(��4�&����3������2
�
������8�7���	��������������	
����������	�4�8��������9��(��7�	
�����������������������	
�����7��������������������3���4�=�7��3���������(��7�	
�����������������������	
��������3�����������������������4�<�	������5�����
�����������	������������
��������(��7���������������������	
��	�$	
��	�;5�	�	���0��	����4�(�3��������(����������������	����!�������:����	�����������������������������>??@ABCD�EF�GHICJKHL�M@NCB@AOPQ�?@MNRAN�NKIS@OJ�JR�CTTCUMHJCRA�ORAJMRL�HAB�JVRN@�WVRTHP�I@�@LCUCIL@�RM�CA@LCUCIL@�XRM�HA�HLLROHJCRA�RX�NROCHL�VRKNCAUYV@�XRLLRWCAU�OLHNN@N�RX�?@MNRANQ�NKIS@OJ�JR�JV@�NHJCNXPCAU�H�VHICJKHL�M@NCB@AOP�J@NJ�WCLL�I@�@LCUCIL@�JR�SRCA�JV@NOV@T@F��Z�����������[�	��*��	�������	
�����	����	�����$	
��	�4�0�����	���	��+����-�Z�!����	,����������[�	��,��������
�������3�����	�����)\�������������3���������<�	��������2�,�����7�������	�������	,����������[�	�������
�����*�]�����	
�	�	̂Z�����������[�	�������'�#����	��	��0�����������4�3����	�����7��������[�	�������:��3����	��_��3�3,�-�!�����������[�	��*��	�������	
�����	����	�����=������	������	���	��
�(�3������������	�-&�$$��=����	����*	����	��������	���������$)����3���������4��	��	����	������������	�4�=��,��4��������	����	��	�0,��[����	��̂����������	�����������������	�-��	������������������3���4�,��������7����%�����������������7������	����	�������	��	�����)\�3��,�������	�����,��#�	
�3������2��&����3�������4�������������,������������	
��	�����)\�3��2�&����3�������4�3�����������7������((�����4������%�������������	��������$)�0�������	��0������3����������������	����2��<�	������4��	��������7�����3������̀:�����'�����������������	������	�$�'����	���]��(�����������
�����	���	�����*��
����(��������	������������������3����3������	�����)\��	���������������(����		��-���'����	��
��	��������
����������3������)\�:�7��	��	��:�'����	��
��	�����]��(���	�����������������7������	������������	��	�����)\�,������	�����	������������	���	���(�	��	�����7��������������(�3������	���*��
������	������	�������(�����	�������������	���-���'����	��,���������	�����7������	������������	��	�����)\�,����	����	�����	�������������	4��	��,���������3��������������	��	�����)\4�5���!��		�������	��4�������������8�	��������
�(�3������������	���*����	����������!����	�5��7�������-�*�(����	�,��������	��	�	����	��������������	����3��	
��(�	�����������3��������	���	�����!����	�5��7�������������7����������	������������	����������������(�	������(4��	����������(�	������������-�

��
2�

Page 39



�� �������	
��	��
�	������������	����������	�������	�����	���	�����������	�����	�����	�	������	
����	�����������������	���	�������	���	����	����	����	����	��	����	��	����	��������	��	�����	�����	��	�����������������	
��	���	 �����	����!���	
���	�������	���
�	��	�����	��	������	��	���	"�����	#�������	
��	���	������������������	��	���	$�����	%��
��	 ����#��������	
&�	���	����������	��������	��	���	$�����	%��
��	 ����	
��	��
�	$�����	���
�	��	������	�����	��������������	�����'��������	
��	���	����������	��������	��	���	$�����	%��
��	 ����	
��	��
�	����	�������	���
�	��	������	��	����������	������	�����	�����������	 ��	()*(+�������	
��	��
�	�������	���
�	��	�����	���	������	��	���	"#	��	���	������	������	��	�	,����
���	������	��	-��������������	��	
�����	��	���	�����������	������-�.����������	���
������	��	���	�����	��	 ���������	
��	���	�������	������	��	��/��0����	�������	����	��	������	����	������������	�����	��	���	'����	 ��������	�������	��	���������.
��	
���	��	 ��������	��	��������	���	��	����������	��	������	������	��������	����	�����	
��	���	����������	��������	��	���$�����	%��
��	 ���	
���	��	��������	���	��	����������	��/����	�������	
����	�/����	����	���	��1��������	��	��	�������������������	��	�������	��	��
	��	��	��	��	��������	����	��	 ��������	����	��	��
�	��	���	"#	������	���	���
����	�
�	������	��������
���	�����	
���	��	�������	���	��	�������	��	��	 ��������	��	����������	��������2 �%��	������	��	����������	��	���	������3�	���������	��	���	"�����	#������	��	4����	5������	6	-�������	����������������	��	��������	����	��	+��	��	���	$������	��������5�%��	�����������	���
���	�	������	���	�����	�����	��	����������$�7��	�	������	���	����	��	��
�	��	���	"#8�7������	�	������	��	&������	������	��	�������	��	���	"#.�7������	�	������	���	�����������	�	����������	������	��	���������	�����	��	������	�����	������������9�%��	������	��	���������	��	�������	�������4�:�����	������	���	��������	��	��	
����	������
��	���	�����	���������	�������	��	�������	
���	��	������������;� 	������3�	������	�����������	����������	���������	���	������	��	���������� ./��������	����	���	��������	���������	����	�������	.. 	���������	���	�����	������	�������	
��	���	
������	��	����0���������	��	��
�	�������	���������	������	��	����������	��	��
�	����	����
��	����	�������	�������	��	���	"#�<=>	?@ABAC@?	>=	D=AE	>F?	GHF?I?J ���������	
��	���	���&���	��	�����������	�������	��	���	��	����������	������	����	������	
���	���	��	��������	���	��	����������	��������	������	��������	%��	�����
���	�������	��	������	
���	���	��	��������	��	&���	���	K�����2 ��������	���	����������	��������	��	���	$�����	%��
��	 ���5�.. 	���������	
����	����	�����	��	������	��	���	"#	��2��� 8���
��	����	�����	������	��	�	&��������	���	�����	������	��	�	������	������	��	�	&�������������� �	�������	�����	��	���������	���	L	������������8���
���
�	�����	��	���������	�������	���	������	��	���	�������	�����	��	�	5������	����!���$��������	
����	����	�����	��	������	��	���	"#	��	��	�������	�����	���	��	����	����	L	�������	���������	�����	
��	
����������	��	������������	������	��	���	������	����������	������	��	���	"#�8��������	
��	���	�/������	��	�������	((M	��	���	�����������	���	 �����	 ��	()))	��	�����������	��	���
�����	�����������	����	(	��	���	7������	������	 ��	NO(N	��	��	�������	��������7����	�����	��	���	�����������	�����	��	 ��������3�	�����������	�������	���	'����	 ��������	�����	�������	���	;���	P������5�����	�����	���	 ���������	
���	��	��
����	����	����	��1������	
���	��	����	��	�����	��	������	
���	����	����������	������������$�����������	��	���	�����������	������	��	��	 ��������	����	������	
���	��	���������	
����	����������	����	���	;���	P�����	����������	.
���������.�1����Q�����������������
���	
Page 40



1 
 

Southampton City Council’s Allocations Policy (short version) 
 

What is the Housing Needs Register? 

To be considered for social housing, applicants must join the Housing Needs Register (the Register). 

The council decides who is prioritised for social housing in the city. The council aims to house those 

with the highest needs first.   

What is the Allocations Policy? 

The Allocation Policy explains: 

1) who can apply to the Housing Needs Register and be considered for social housing; 

2) how the council decides which applicants to prioritise for social housing.   

Who is eligible to register?  

To join the Housing Needs Register applicants must: 

1) qualify; 

2) be eligible;  

3) meet the requirements for either “reasonable” or “additional” preference; 

4) be suitable to be a tenant. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To qualify, the applicant must: 

 Have a ‘housing need’ (reasonable or 

additional preference).  

 Be downsizing from larger social 

housing. 

 Be moving out of adapted social 

housing. 

 Want to move to older persons 

housing. 

 

 

To be eligible, the applicant must: 

 Be 18 years or older. 

 Not own any residential property (in the UK 

or abroad). 

 Have a local connection (must have lived in 

Southampton for 3 out of the last 5 years).  

 Meet immigration criteria (have recourse to 

public funds, not be an asylum seeker, be 

habitually resident in the UK).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

To meet the requirements for either “reasonable” or “additional” preference, the applicant must: 

 Be homeless. 

 Be owed a housing duty. 

 Occupy insanitary or overcrowded housing. 

 Have a medical or welfare need for needing housing. 

 Have a need to move area to stop hardship from happening to them or others. 

 Be a member of the Armed Forces community who has urgent housing needs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be a suitable tenant, the applicant must: 

 have no history of Anti-social behaviour; 

 no rent arrears and; 

 be able to manage a tenancy. 

 

 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8a
Appendix 2



2 
 

How to apply? 

Most applicants are expected to apply online at Join the Housing Register (southampton.gov.uk). For 

those who are unable to apply online, officers may be able to assist by contacting the council as 

detailed above. 

When do you have to re-register? 

The council will require every applicant to re-register every year. This is to help the council 

understand the true level of housing needs in the city. This is to make sure applications are up to 

date and to prevent fraudulent applications. 

What if you have specific housing needs? 

Housing with Care schemes 

 If you would benefit from additional onsite care and associated facilities catering to certain 

needs, you may be eligible for Housing with Care.   

 If you meet the criteria, you must request a Housing with Care referral from your care co-

ordinator or social worker. This is to make sure that your individual needs are met. If you do 

not have a care coordinator or a social worker, you can contact the Allocations service at 023 

8083 3006 and an officer will support you in the application process.  

 You will not need to bid via the Homebid website. You will be directly matched to a home in 

a specialist housing scheme which caters for your needs. 

Adapted Property Direct Let (APDL) 

 If you require an extensively adapted property to meet your disability or housing needs, you 

may be eligible for an Adapted Property Direct Let (APDL).  

 You will not need to bid via Homebid. You will be matched to a property directly.  

 An Occupational Therapist will assess your needs and what adaptations are required.  

 The council will match you to an adapted property. Most applicants will have a choice with 

regards to location, as long as there is a supply of vacant social housing in that area.   

Special Letting Scheme 

 A special letting scheme is usually created when a new development of social housing is 

built. The landlord of the new scheme may want to have special rules which determine 

which applicants the council may let the new homes to. Sometimes there may also be 

The council has a website called “Homebid.” Applicants can view all the available properties and bid 

on vacancies which they are eligible for and interested in.  

To apply go to: www.homebid.org.uk 

If you want some support in the application process, you can: 

 Email - housing.allocations@southampton.gov.uk. 

 Call - 023 8083 3006. 

 Visit- Gateway at the Civic Centre offices. 

You must keep the council up to date with your housing situation. For example, if you have moved 

home or your family size has changed. To do this, log into your account and update your application. 

 

Page 42

https://www.southampton.gov.uk/housing/find-a-home/apply-for-housing/
http://www.homebid.org.uk/
mailto:housing.allocations@southampton.gov.uk


3 
 

planning requirements to consider. Special lettings schemes are created to ensure that the 

new development operates as a well-managed, good place to live. 

 It means that in addition to the normal qualifying criteria, successful applicants will have to 

meet additional eligibility criteria. These will be detailed in the property advert on Homebid. 

You can only apply if you meet the additional criteria.   

How will the council allocate social housing? 

Type and size of property 

The council wants to make the best use of the social housing available. The council will assess an 

applicant’s needs to decide what type and size of property they can bid for on the Homebid website. 

If the property is advertised with a priority for certain applicants- for example, those who need a 

ground floor property due to disability- these applicants will be made the offers first.  

This chart gives details as to the size of the property required: 

Family Size Size of Accommodation 

Single person Studio or one-bedroom 

Two adults living as a couple One-bedroom 

Adult couple or single person, with: 

 One child. 

 Two children aged under 10. 

 Two children aged under 16 of the 
same sex. 

(includes step and half-siblings, cousins, 
nieces/nephews, etc) 

Two-bedroom 

Adult couple or single person, with:  

 Two children of opposite sexes, at least 
one over age 10. 

 Adult couple or single person, with 
three children under 16. 

 Adult couple or single person with four 
children, including two of each sex. 

(includes step and half siblings, cousins, 
nieces/nephews, etc) 

Three bedrooms 

Adult couple or single person, with: 

 Three children, one aged over 16 and 
two aged over 10 of different sex. 

 Four children, one aged over 16, one 
aged 10-15 and two aged under 10. 

 Five children aged 0-15. 
(includes step and half-siblings, cousins, 
nieces/nephews, etc) 

Four bedrooms 

 

  

Page 43



4 
 

The Banding Scheme 

The council will use the following banding scheme to prioritise applicants on the Housing Register. 

The scheme starts with Band A (highest priority level) down to Band D (lowest priority level). 

Band  Band name 

A 1. *Urgent housing needs: A life-threatening illness or sudden disability 

2. *Urgent housing needs: Social housing tenants at risk of violence or threats of 
violence, including intimidated witnesses, and those escaping serious antisocial 
behaviour or domestic abuse. The tenant’s landlord must decide whether they 
are required to move for these reasons. Private tenants, owner-occupiers and 
those with no housing will be referred to the council’s Homelessness service. 

3. Under occupation:  Social housing tenants who are giving up 3+ bedroom 
social housing. 

4. Efficient use of Housing Stock: Giving up a wheelchair-accessible or extensively 
adapted home which is no longer needed. 

5. Decant: Council tenants whose home is part of a regeneration scheme. 

6. Decant: Council tenants whose home is being permanently disposed of (e.g. 
due to disrepair). 

B 1. Main Homeless Duty: The applicant is owed the main housing duty under 
s.193(2) of the Housing Act 1996 and is ready to move on from temporary 
accommodation. 

2. Under occupation:  Giving up 2-bedroom social housing which is no longer 
needed. 

3. Efficient use of Housing Stock: Giving up ground-floor social housing which is 
no longer needed. 

4. Care Leavers Move –On: A young person who has been looked after, fostered 
or accommodated by the council and is now ready for independent living. 

5. Applicants with two or more categories in Band C2-C4. 

C   1. Homeless Prevention or Relief Duty: Applicants owed the prevention or relief 
duties under Part VII of the Housing Act 1996. 

2. Applicants occupying insanitary, overcrowded, or unsatisfactory housing 
conditions. 

3. Medical /welfare need: Applicants with an assessed welfare reason to move 
home, including grounds related to a disability. 

4. Hardship: Applicants who need to move to a particular locality in Southampton 
to avoid hardship to themselves or others. 

5. Right to Move: Any social housing tenant in England who needs to move to 
Southampton under the Right to Move regulations. 

D   1. Intentionally Homeless: Applicants who are homeless within the meaning of 
Part VII of the Housing Act but who are considered to be intentionally 
homeless. 

2. Housing related debt: Applicants who have housing related debt owed to the 
council or a social landlord and are not repaying this or do not have a 
repayment plan agreed. 

3. Care Leavers Not Ready to Move:  A young person who has been looked after, 
fostered or accommodated by the council but is not yet ready for independent 
living. 

4. Refusal penalty: Applicants who have refused 3 offers of accommodation will 
be placed in Band D for six months. 

 

Page 44



5 
 

*Applicants in bands A1 and A2 will only be permitted to place bids for 3 months. If they have still not been housed, they 

will be suspended from bidding and one direct offer of accommodation will be made. If at any time they refuse an offer of 

accommodation which the council determines as suitable, they will be placed into the band they previously occupied. If 

they did not previously have a band, they will be removed from the register. 

How properties are advertised and prioritised 

Properties will be advertised at www.homebid.org.uk . The property adverts will explain whether any 

specific requirements apply to applicants for them to be made an offer of a home. 

Sometimes, the council will prioritise- or restrict bidding to- certain groups of applicants. For 

example, if the council decides there is a need to increase lets to homeless households, it may 

consider bids from those in categories B1 and C1 before all other bids. Or, if a ground floor property 

is advertised, the council will consider those with a ground floor need before all other applicants. The 

property advert will explain this.  

The council will produce a lettings plan which details the proportion of applicants from each band it 

expects to house each year. This plan will help guide the council as to how to advertise properties. 

What happens if an offer is refused? 

If an applicant refuses 3 offers, they will be placed into Band D for 6 months. If a 4th offer of 

accommodation is refused at any point the application will be cancelled.  

How to request a review of a decision? 

Applicants have the right to request a review of their case, and to request any information 

considered when deciding on their case. The letter which notifies applicants of their band or a 

decision to not accept them onto the register will provide details of how to request a review. The 

review will be carried out by an officer who has not been involved in the case and is more senior 

than the original decision-maker.  

How to request a move to Southampton to take up work? 

Some applicants may apply under ‘Right to Move’ regulations. To be considered for this, applicants 

must: 

 Be an existing social housing tenant in England. 

 Have the ‘hardship reasonable preference (as noted above). 

 Need to move because they work in the area or. 

 Need to move to take up a work offer in the area.  

To request to move to an area to take up work applicants must contact us at 

housing.allocations@southamptgon.gov.uk or phone 023 8083 3006. Applications under the Right to 

Move cannot be made online. 

How to buy your council home? 

Under the Right to Buy scheme, council tenants have a right to buy their home at a discount. Please 

see Southampton City Council’s Right to Buy website for more information on the Right to Buy 

scheme: www.southampton.gov.uk/housing/your-home/right-to-buy/  

Deliberately worsening your housing situation and fraud 

Page 45

http://www.homebid.org.uk/
mailto:housing.allocations@southamptgon.gov.uk
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/housing/your-home/right-to-buy/


6 
 

The council will require proof of information in the application, such as benefits, council tax records, 

tenancy agreements and any other information to validate the application. The council will also 

verify information by office interviews, home visits, statements from previous social landlords and 

verification documents. The council has a Tenancy Fraud Team which investigates fraudulent activity.  

Data protection 

Personal information will be held and destroyed in accordance with Data Protection legislation and 

the council’s retention schedule. Data will only be used for the purpose of assessing housing 

applications, or for exercising other duties compatible with the council’s status as a strategic 

authority. 

Contact details   

 

If you have any questions or need any support, please contact us: 

 Email - housing.allocations@southampton.gov.uk. 

 Call - 023 8083 3006. 

 Visit- Gateway at the Civic Centre offices. 

 

Page 46

mailto:housing.allocations@southampton.gov.uk


 

Page 1 of 11 

 

 
 
 
 
 
The Public Sector Equality Duty (Section 149 of the Equality Act) requires public 

bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of 

opportunity, and foster good relations between different people carrying out their 

activities. 

The Equality Duty supports good decision making – it encourages public bodies to be 

more efficient and effective by understanding how different people will be affected by 

their activities, so that their policies and services are appropriate and accessible to all 

and meet different people’s needs.  The Council’s Equality and Safety Impact 

Assessment (ESIA) includes an assessment of the community safety impact 

assessment to comply with Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act and will enable 

the Council to better understand the potential impact of proposals and consider 

mitigating action.  

Name or Brief 
Description of 
Proposal 

New Housing Allocations Policy 

Brief Service Profile (including number of customers) 

 
The council in its role as a housing authority is required to publish its Allocations 

scheme detailing how it will allocate social housing in the city, in line with the 

requirements of S.166A of the Housing Act 1996. The Allocations policy details 

how applicants are prioritised.  The current allocations scheme allocates points to 

applicants based on their circumstances. Applicants receive one point per month 

for waiting in addition to the other points which relate to their particular 

circumstances. The points based system has existed in some form for at least 15 

years. 

To date there are just over 8,000 live applications on the Housing Needs Register 

in Southampton. However only 768 lets were made via the Homebid choice based 

lettings scheme in 2022/23. This is down from 1447 lets made in 2014/15.  

Summary of Impact and Issues 

 
Demand for affordable housing is increasing and yet the council is receiving fewer 

properties to let.  

Applications which were made a long time ago have accrued many hundreds of 
points simply by virtue of waiting a long time. They are often in a position to be 
successful in bidding for ever more scarcely available properties to the detriment of 
those who applied later but are in more acute need. Due to the diminishing supply 
of properties (particularly larger homes), there has been an increase in the level of 
stage 1 and stage 2 complaints against the council which in the main originate 
from an ever-growing number of households seeking a dwindling supply of homes. 
The current policy, as designed, sometimes requires officers to seek exceptions to 

Equality and Safety Impact Assessment 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8a
Appendix 3



 

Page 2 of 11 

 

policy in order to meet this unmet acute need which risks undermining confidence 
in the policy and the council’s ability to be equitable in its treatment of all 
applicants. 
 
Additionally, a points based system is used less widely by other authorities; most 
housing authorities use a banding system which is often considered to be simpler 
to understand. For example, in the current policy there are 18 different points 
categories available and three different applicant categories who may be entitled to 
those points categories.  
 
The new policy is designed to have only four bands in order of priority, and no 
distinct applicant categories. It is designed to give the greatest priority (i.e. the 
greatest chance of being housed) to those applicants who are in the highest need. 
The length of time waiting for housing will be less of a determining factor; in most 
cases the tiebreaker for separating two applicants with the same priority will be the 
date they were awarded that priority rather than the length of time waiting as a 
whole.  
 
The new policy also introduces a penalty for repeatedly refusing offers of 
accommodation, to ensure that bids placed for properties are to those who 
genuinely want a need to take up the offer of a new home. 
 
 
Applicants will be required to re-register their application under the new policy. This 
means all existing applications will be closed. There is very little change to the 
overall eligibility rules to join the housing needs register so the vast majority of 
applicants will still qualify for rehousing. However, not all will receive the same 
level of overall priority. Of those who wish to reapply, the applicants most impacted 
will be those who have waited a long time and accrued significant points simply by 
virtue of waiting- but as long as their circumstances have not changed, they are 
likely to still be permitted to remain on the housing needs register. 
 
Since the policy was last considered for amendment by Cabinet (September 2019), 
over 3,400 applicants have not placed any bids for a property and over 2,600 have 
not even logged into the Homebid website to view properties available. A 
significant proportion of the 8,000 applicants on the register are likely to be, either 
no longer interested in being rehoused or have moved and not updated their 
details. Because they remain on the register, this gives a misleading impression of 
the true level of housing need in the city. With all applicants requiring to re-register 
onto an upgraded I.T system, the council will gain better intelligence as to housing 
need trends enabling it to support those who are in housing need. 
 
The council will assist those who may struggle or be unable to re-register. It will do 
this initially by contacting all applicants either digitally- or by letter where 
necessary-to inform them of the proposed changes and invite them to participate in 
the consultation process.  
 
Once the new policy is adopted, there will likely be a transition period where 
applicants will need to re-register on a new customer platform by a certain date. 
Providing applicants do this and still qualify, they will retain their original qualifying 
date. 
 
The council will identify vulnerable applicants already on the Housing Needs 

Page 48



 

Page 3 of 11 

 

Register- such as those who need to move due to a serious medical need or those 
fleeing violence- and manually convert those applications into a new application 
compliant with the new policy. It will consider doing similar for existing applicants 
who are elderly or need to move due to a disability. Consideration will also be 
given to migrating all existing applications into the new policy and customer 
platform, to save applicants having to reapply themselves at the point the new 
policy is adopted. However, this will depend on the feasibility of this including 
whether existing/new I.T. partners can offer this functionality. If this is not feasible, 
the council will use its staffing resources- such as colleagues in our customer 
service centre, Local Housing Offices and Supported Housing Services to offer 
practical assistance to re-register for those who require it.  
 
If the policy is approved by Cabinet, all applicants will be written to informing them 
of the changes and the transitional period during which they will be required to re-
register. Staff within Housing Needs, Supported Housing and Local Housing 
Offices will be trained to offer practical assistance to re-register onto the new 
system to those who may be less able to do so without support. In most cases this 
will involve staff members taking an application over the telephone but will, where 
required, be conducted in person. A programme of communications including team 
briefings with relevant Adult Social Care, Childrens’ Service, Supported Housing 
and Housing Management teams will be conducted alongside the usual customer 
portal and social media messaging which accompanied the public consultation. 
The Allocations service will also take all practical steps available to identify from 
existing case management systems applicants whose protected characteristics 
may indicate a need for support- including but not exclusively- care leavers, those 
fleeing abuse and those who may be vulnerable by reasons of age or disability. 
 
If any applicant does not re-register by the required date but contacts the council 
later, the council will consider whether to use its discretion to accept a late re-
registration taking into account the circumstances and needs of the individual and 
the council’s duties under the Public Sector Equalities Duty. 
 
This ESIA will be updated if required as the consultation process develops and will 
be reviewed before submission for Cabinet approval. 
 

Potential Positive Impacts 

 The policy will replace 18 points categories and 3 applicant categories with 
4 bands of priority so will be simpler to understand for the applicant. 

 Households in the greatest need will be allocated homes above those who 
have simply waited a long time. 

 The council will require every applicant to re-register under the new 
allocations system and require everyone to re-register annually. This will 
give a better indicator of the true level of housing need in the city. 

 Refusal penalties will discourage bids from applicants who do not need to 
move; reduce staff processing times and contribute to reducing void rent 
loss. This provides an overall benefit to the Housing service and its 
customers. 

 

Responsible  
Service Manager 

Nick Bryant, Allocations & Advice Manager 

Date January 2024 

Approved by 
Senior Manager 

Maria Byrne, Service Lead, Housing Needs & Welfare 

Page 49



 

Page 4 of 11 

 

 
Potential Impact 

 

Impact 
Assessment 

Details of Impact Possible Solutions & 
Mitigating Actions 

Age  Young people- care 
leavers are assigned 
priority within the policy. 
There are currently 538 
Looked After Children aged 
16-25 years old in the 
council’s care. They will be 
assigned priority in this 
policy for social housing 
under the new scheme. If 
they are ready for 
independent living, they will 
receive the second-highest 
priority band.  

 Young people- aged over 
16 receive entitlement to 
their own bedroom.  

 Older people- a small 
number of applicants aged 
60+ who currently receive 
200 downsizing points for 
giving up general needs, 2-
bedroom housing to move 
to 60+ accommodation will 
be placed into Band B, 
rather than continuing to 
receive the highest priority. 
There are xxx applicants 
aged 60+ who are in 
general need with 2 
bedrooms. They will be 
placed into Band B.  

 

Young people- care 
leavers: The policy for the 
first time includes care 
leavers a specified group 
entitled to priority within the 
bidding process. Those 
ready to move into 
independent living receive 
the second-highest band. 
This is contingent on an 
assessment conducted by 
Children’s Services and a 
quota of total lets per year. 
Previously, care leavers did 
not receive a specified 
priority and had to spend a 
long time waiting. The 
‘ready to move’ and quota 
requirements seek to 
ensure an allocation to a 
care leaver is sustainable 
and provides positive 
outcomes for some of the 
city’s most vulnerable 
clients. The quota and 
assessment process will be 
regularly reviewed with 
Children’s Services 
colleagues. 

Young people- aged over 
16 For the first time, 
younger adults will not be 
expected to share a 
bedroom with a sibling of 
the same sex. This will 
increase some applicants’ 
bedroom entitlement, 
meaning it could be harder 
for some households with 
children to be rehoused 
into large properties. To 
mitigate this, the council 
has inserted a paragraph in 
the main body of the policy 
explaining that applicants 
can still move to a smaller 

Date January 2024 

Page 50



 

Page 5 of 11 

 

Impact 
Assessment 

Details of Impact Possible Solutions & 
Mitigating Actions 

property if it will represent 
an improvement to their 
housing situation. This 
provision means there is no 
adverse impact on this 
group arising from the 
change in policy. 

Older people aged 60+ 
This group of people will 
still receive the second 
highest band. Due to the 
nature of the 
accommodation, they may 
bid for (it is a requirement 
to be 60+ to access the 
new housing) they receive 
an adjustment which other, 
younger applicants do not 
benefit from. Therefore, 
compete against a much 
smaller pool of applicants. 

Disability  Applicants who require 
wheelchair property. 

 Applicants with acute 
medical/welfare need. 

 Applicants who need to 
move on medical grounds 
including grounds relating 
to a disability 

Applicants who require 

wheelchair property 

These applicants are not 

able to bid but instead 

direct offers are made. This 

is due to the specialist 

nature of the property 

required and the risk that if 

wheelchair properties, 

which are very scarce, 

were advertised, they could 

be allocated to people who 

may not make full use of 

the home. The direct letting 

procedure provides a more 

tailored approach to 

allocating homes to people 

with significant disabilities 

and as such is considered 

preferable. Applicants are 

still able to express choice 

of property and area, in 

much the same way as 

those who bid for available 

vacancies. Additionally, 

Page 51



 

Page 6 of 11 

 

Impact 
Assessment 

Details of Impact Possible Solutions & 
Mitigating Actions 

there is no refusal penalty 

unlike those who are 

required to bid, thus 

providing a further 

adjustment to help meet 

need. 

Applicants with acute 

medical/welfare need As 

above these applicants are 

directly offered properties 

on occasion (e.g if they 

have not accepted an offer 

through the usual bidding 

process). Choice will still be 

considered by officers 

making decisions but will 

not be the determining 

factor. Applicants in this 

situation will benefit over 

and above all other 

applicants in that they will 

be offered properties 

before they are advertised, 

mitigating the risk of the 

policy restricting their 

access to housing 

Applicants who need to 

move on medical 

grounds including 

grounds relating to a 

disability 

Applicants whose only 

identified housing need is 

physical or mental disability 

will be placed into band C3, 

a lower band. In the case of 

those who need to move 

due to a physical disability, 

e.g. to ground floor 

accommodation, property 

adverts will continue to be 

designed to give them 

Page 52



 

Page 7 of 11 

 

Impact 
Assessment 

Details of Impact Possible Solutions & 
Mitigating Actions 

priority over those in higher 

bands who do not require 

this adjustment. It is 

therefore not anticipated 

there will be any 

lengthening in rehousing 

times for those who need to 

move on mobility grounds.  

 

Applicants who need to 

move on medical/welfare 

grounds but who do not 

require a specific 

property type  

 

These applicants will in the 

main be placed into band 

C(3). The council will 

consider in each case 

whether the threshold for 

Band A1 is met, taking into 

account the likely waiting 

time if no further priority 

was given. Additionally, the 

council will identify in its 

lettings plan the numbers of 

people it aims to house 

from band C3 each year 

and where there is need to 

do so- e.g. if few people 

are being housed form this 

band- it will tailor its 

property adverts to give 

people priority from this 

band.  

 

A benefit of introducing this 

new policy and 

accompanying IT system is 

Page 53



 

Page 8 of 11 

 

Impact 
Assessment 

Details of Impact Possible Solutions & 
Mitigating Actions 

that it will enable better 

intelligence and business 

reporting, assisting with 

examining trends relating to 

different applicants’ 

rehousing prospects, 

helping to inform policy 

development in the future. 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Children who identify as a different 
gender to the one assigned at birth 

This may indicate an 
increase in bedroom need 
which in turn may increase 
the length of time to be 
rehoused. The council will 
consider on a case-by case 
basis whether these cases 
should result in an award of 
a medical/welfare priority. 
An award may result in the 
applicant either qualifying 
for housing where 
previously they did not, or 
increase their existing 
priority. 

Care 
Experienced 

Addressed in Age N/A 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 

None identified N/A 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

None identified N/A 

Race  There must be a need to live 
together in order for people to be 
included in applications. This may 
impact people who live in 
extended families which is 
common in some communities. 

Where an applicant wants 
to include extended family 
members in an application 
but there is no ’need’ to live 
together as defined by the 
policy, the council will offer 
advice on housing 
arrangements and other 
housing options which will 
allow families to remain 
living together in the home 
or close by. This could 
include considering 
whether to offer an 
applicant a property with 
fewer bedrooms if it were to 
result in an overall 
improvement to the 
housing situation- as 
identified in paragraph 90 

Page 54



 

Page 9 of 11 

 

Impact 
Assessment 

Details of Impact Possible Solutions & 
Mitigating Actions 

of the policy- or considering 
on a case-by-case basis 
whether to make an 
exception to policy- e.g. 
where there has been a 
long-established extended 
family living arrangement 
within the household. 

Religion or 
Belief 

None identified  N/A 

Sex Local connection criteria may 
impact survivors of domestic 
abuse (DA) who have fled to 
Southampton, and are statistically 
much more likely to be women 

The council will comply with 
its duties under Domestic 
Abuse and Homelessness 
legislation and not apply 
residency criteria where 
there is unmet housing 
need and DA is the reason 
for having moved to the 
city. 

Sexual 
Orientation 

None identified N/A 

Community 
Safety  

Housing of offenders The policy details that the 
council will not house those 
who are considered 
unsuitable to be a tenant. 
In making a decision to 
rehouse an offender or 
applicants considered to 
pose a risk to the 
community, the council will 
consult with relevant 
agencies (e.g. Policy, 
Probation service) and its 
housing colleagues. Risk 
assessments are carried 
out when, during the 
application process, a 
history of offending or 
prison time is identified. 
Risk assessments place 
restrictions upon or void the 
application. 

Poverty The council is not able to rehouse 
most applicants in housing need 
quickly; the council will place some 
applicants in band D where they 
have unpaid debt 

- Officers involved in 
processing 
applications to the 
housing needs 
register will offer 
advice on housing 
options and be 
trained to identify 
indicators of acute 

Page 55



 

Page 10 of 11 

 

Impact 
Assessment 

Details of Impact Possible Solutions & 
Mitigating Actions 

need, e.g. DA or 
risk of 
homelessness. 

- Where the council 
places people in 
band D for unpaid 
housing debt, it will 
only be where the 
applicant is, despite 
the best efforts of 
the council, 
avoiding engaging 
with the council. We 
expect the numbers 
of people placed 
into this band for 
this reason to be 
very small and only 
reserved to those 
who have 
demonstrated 
consistent non-
compliance and 
non-engagement. 

Health & 
Wellbeing  

The ‘cost of living’ crisis may 
squeeze household budgets, and 
therefore, affect the health and 
wellbeing of families and 
individuals. 

Paragraph 44 of the policy 
details that the council will 
in exceptional cases make 
direct offers of 
accommodation to people 
in the most need. This may 
include those who, for 
example, are living in 
insanitary accommodation 
impacting health and 
wellbeing.  

 

Other categories of 
applicant in urgent housing 
need will be placed into 
band A and in effect, are 
guaranteed an offer after 
they have been in the band 
for 3 months. People with 
less acute health/wellbeing 
needs will often be in band 
B or C, which means they 

Page 56



 

Page 11 of 11 

 

Impact 
Assessment 

Details of Impact Possible Solutions & 
Mitigating Actions 

will have a realistic 
prospect of rehousing.  

 

The council will update its 
letting plan to take into 
account health and 
wellbeing issues as time 
develops, this may result in 
adverts for properties on 
occasion being restricted to 
certain categories of 
applicant (giving them 
preference over applicants 
with no health/wellbeing 
considerations) 

Other 
Significant 
Impacts 

Community safety The policy will allow the 
council to determine 
someone is unsuitable to 
be a tenant for example if 
they have caused anti-
social behaviour or 
committed violent/hate 
crimes. For potentially risky 
applicants who are 
accepted onto the register 
the council will liaise with 
the Police, Probation 
service and other agencies 
to ensure the applicant is 
housed in the most 
appropriate area and type 
of home 

 
 
 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Summary of quantitative data from consultation feedback 

Proposal to replace a point-based scheme with a banding scheme 
    

Q1 (Proposal to replace a point-based scheme with a banding scheme) To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal?   

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree Total 
 

73 110 66 68 85 402 
 

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree 
  

18% 27% 16% 17% 21% 
  

Q2 (Proposal to replace a point-based scheme with a banding scheme) What impact do you feel this may have on you, your family or the wider community? 

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t 
know 

Total 

46 84 61 72 112 28 403 

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t 
know 

 

11% 21% 15% 18% 28% 7%   

Proposed changes to the number of offers an applicant can refuse 

    

Q4 (Proposed changes to the number of offers an applicant can refuse) To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal?  
 

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree Total 
 

115 129 47 49 60 400 
 

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree 
  

29% 32% 12% 12% 15% 
  

Q5 (Proposed changes to the number of offers an applicant can refuse) What impact do you feel this may have on you, your family or the wider community? 

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t 
know 

Total 

76 79 97 37 79 28 396 

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t 
know 

 

19% 20% 24% 9% 20% 7%   

Proposal to require applicants to re-register every year 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8a
A

ppendix 4



Q13 (Proposal to require applicants to re-register every year) To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal?  

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree Total 
 

96 98 53 65 91 403 
 

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree 
  

24% 24% 13% 16% 23% 
  

Q14 (Proposal to require applicants to re-register every year) What impact do you feel this may have on you, your family or the wider community? 

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t 
know 

Total 

65 61 88 54 100 35 403 

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t 
know 

 

16% 15% 22% 13% 25% 9%   

Proposed change that allows children to be entitled to their own bedroom from the age of 16 

Q7 (Proposed change that allows children to be entitled to their own bedroom from the age of 16) To what extent do you agree or disagree with this 
proposal?  
 

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree Total 

117 133 69 30 54 403 

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree 
 

29% 33% 17% 7% 13% 
 

  
     

Q8 (Proposed change that allows children to be entitled to their own bedroom from the age of 16) What impact do you feel this may have on you, your 
family or the wider community? 

  
     

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t know 

87 78 117 34 55 31 

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t know 

22% 19% 29% 8% 14% 8% 

P
age 60



Proposed changes to the amount of time an applicant must have lived in Southampton 

Q10 (Proposed changes to the amount of time an applicant must have lived in Southampton) To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal?  

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree Total 

111 121 87 39 44 402 

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree 
 

28% 30% 22% 10% 11% 
 

Q11 (Proposed changes to the amount of time an applicant must have lived in Southampton) What impact do you feel this may have on you, your family or 
the wider community? 

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t know 

71 70 141 33 44 40 

A very positive impact A fairly positive impact No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t know 

18% 18% 35% 8% 11% 10% 

Proposed requirement that existing tenants have an inspection before they move that confirms a property has been kept to an acceptable standard 

Q16 (Proposed requirement that existing tenants have an inspection before they move that confirms a property has been kept to an acceptable standard) 
To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? 

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree Total 

153 128 78 17 21 397 

Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly disagree 
 

39% 32% 20% 4% 5% 
 

Q17 (Proposed requirement that existing tenants have an inspection before they move that confirms a property has been kept to an acceptable standard) 
What impact do you feel this may have on you, your family or the wider community? 

A very positive impact A fairly positive 
impact 

No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t know 

113 78 135 19 20 30 

A very positive impact A fairly positive 
impact 

No impact at all A fairly negative 
impact 

A very negative impact Don’t know 

29% 20% 34% 5% 5% 8% 

P
age 61



To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements? 

  Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree  Strongly disagree 

Homebid is easy to use 74 131 14 8 0 

The property adverts 
contain enough 
information 

29 88 25 56 24 

  Strongly agree Agree Neither Disagree  Strongly disagree 

Homebid is easy to use 33% 58% 6% 4% 0% 

The property adverts 
contain enough 
information 

13% 40% 11% 25% 11% 

 

P
age 62



 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

   
 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  TOYS R US – DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

DATE:   11 APRIL 2024  

RECIPIENT:  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
THIS IS NOT A DECISION PAPER 
 

SUMMARY: 
 

1. The report advises of the proposals to make variations to the Development Agreement 
held by the leaseholder of the former Toys R Us site. The proposed changes aim to 
support the delivery of this key regeneration site which has planning permission for new 
homes, public realm, leisure, and commercial uses within this key city centre location. 

 
BACKGROUND and BRIEFING DETAILS: 

 
2. The Council is the freeholder of the former Toys R Us site (see Annex 2 – Site Plan), 

which currently comprises a large vacant superstore structure with open surface car 
parking, located to the south of Southampton Central train station. Following the collapse 
of Toys R Us in 2018, Packaged Living acquired the leasehold interest of the site in May 
2021. There are circa 87 years remaining on the existing lease.  

 
3. On November 15, 2021, Cabinet approved the key commercial terms of a Development 

Agreement and new lease to Packaged Living (the Developer). A Development 
Agreement was signed on the December 23, 2021 between the Council and the 
Developer. The Development Agreement set out a number of conditions (the ‘Conditions 
Precedent’) that need to be met before the expiry of the agreement on 23rd June 2024 
(the ‘Long Stop’ date). This Conditions Precedent currently needs to be completed by 
the Long Stop Date before the new (extended) lease is agreed.  

 
4. In accordance with the conditions of the Development Agreement, the developer 

submitted an application for development (ref. 21/01837/FUL) and a decision notice was 
issued on December 8, 2022 granting permission. The application was for:   

Hybrid planning permission for a major mixed-use development comprising: 

 Full planning permission for: 

 Demolition of existing buildings and structures. 

 Construction of 4 buildings (Blocks A, B, C, and D) 

 Block A: Comprising 6,816 sqm of commercial floorspace (Class E). 

 Blocks B, C, and D: Comprising 603 residential units (Class C3). Ground 
floor commercial floorspace (Class E). 

 Outline planning permission for: 

 Construction of 1 building (Block E). 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8b



 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

   
 

 Up to 8 storeys. Flexible commercial/residential/overnight 
accommodation (C1/C3/Class E Uses). Co-living (Sui-Generis). 

The permission includes associated access, parking and public realm, including the 
Maritime Promenade, a new pedestrian link between the station and Harbour Parade. 

Unless implemented, this permission expires on December 8, 2025. 
 

5. Through early 2023 the developer demonstrated commitment to completing the 
conditions of the Development Agreement. However, in 2023 macroeconomic issues 
impacted the construction sector nationally and locally, with increased interest rates, 
inflation on the cost of materials and also the capacity of the local sub-contracting supply 
chain for projects of this scale in Southampton. This made it increasingly difficult for the 
developer to meet the conditions of the Development Agreement within the set 
timescales. The Developer has now advised that due to the limited time remaining on 
the agreement, they are not in a position to be able to complete the conditions within the 
Development Agreement by the June 2024 expiry date. The Developer has therefore 
requested changes to the Development Agreement to provide more flexibility to meet 
the Conditions required to deliver the development. 
 

6. Despite the challenges faced to date the Developer maintains that they are committed 
to the delivery of the project. They have advised that positive trends are emerging 
through 2024 which will support them in delivering the scheme, such as lower predicted 
interest rates, reduced inflation, and stabilisation of construction costs.   
 

7. If no changes are made to the commercial terms, then the Development Agreement will 
expire in June 2024 and the developer would no longer be able to progress the delivery 
of the scheme. The Council would need to negotiate a new agreement with the same 
developer, as they are also the leaseholder of the site. This would add more time and 
cost to the delivery of the scheme if a new agreement has to be prepared and agreed. 

 
RESOURCE/POLICY/FINANCIAL/LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

 
8. The details of the changes to the commercial terms are set out at Annex 1. It would be 

expected that Packaged Living pay SCC legal/ surveyor fees in relation to facilitating 
changes to the Commercial terms. 
 
The Council will need to closely monitor the project and commercial arrangements 
related thereto, so a continued ‘development management’ resource will be needed on 
this project. 
 
The scheme has planning permission ref: 21/01837/FUL demonstrating its compliance 
with planning policy. 

 
This scheme supports many of the Council’s strategic objectives around housing, 
environment, sustainability, Green City and economic development. The emerging 
Southampton Renaissance master planning work also recognises this site’s potential to 
contribute to a vision for the City’s future prosperity. The development proposals are 
consistent with the key growth and regeneration ambitions for the City. 

Page 64



 
BRIEFING PAPER 

 

   
 

 
OPTIONS and TIMESCALES: 

 
9. Do nothing. The Development agreement would expire in June 2024. If no changes are 

made to the existing agreement, it is unlikely the development would be able to progress 
at all. The construction industry has faced difficulties over the past year which delayed 
progress towards appointing a contractor. As the current developer is the leaseholder of 
the site, a new development agreement would need to be negotiated, at significant time 
and cost, if the current agreement was allowed to expire. The development of the site is 
subject to the current ownership arrangements and would require the support of all 
parties having a legal interest in the property. 

 
10. Delegate authority to allow changes to the Development Agreement as recommended 

in Annex 1. This acknowledges the impacts of macroeconomic challenges faced by 
construction projects over the past year, gives the developer certainty that the 
Development Agreement can be extended up to a certain duration, but also allows the 
council to continue to actively monitor and support progress towards delivery of the 
scheme. As freehold landowner, the council wishes to support the delivery of the former 
Toys R Us site (Plan attached at Annex 2) for a mix of uses consistent with its ambitions 
for the good growth of the City. 
 

11. Agree an unconditional extension of 3 years to the Development Agreement.  This would 
be relatively inflexible and would require any further changes to be brought back to 
Cabinet for approval, which may add further delay to the delivery of the site. 3 years is 
longer than the original duration of the Development Agreement and there is a risk the 
site will remain vacant for this additional duration, which is not in the interests of City 
regeneration. The only option to end the agreement within the extended 3 years, would 
be to formally terminate the agreement, which would incur additional costs, time and 
delay to the Council. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
12. The Council is not taking any active participation in the re-development and (apart from 

timing of the projected revenue & capital receipts) no financial risks are involved.  
 

This scheme is subject to uncontrollable economic events which is normal for schemes 
with a long delivery timetable. 

 
13. Appendices/Supporting Information: 

 
Annex 1: Confidential Appendix. Commercial Terms  
Annex 2: Site Plan 

 

 Further Information Available From: 

 

Name: Nawaz Khan – Head of Economic 
Development & Regeneration 

E-mail:  Nawaz.khan@southampton.gov.uk 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Confidential

Page 67

Agenda Item 8b
Appendix 1

by virtue of paragraph number 3 of the Council's Access to information Procedure Rules



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

ANNEX 1 

Site Plan  

 

 

 

 
Page 71

Agenda Item 8b
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION-MAKER:  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO 
THE EXECUTIVE 

DATE OF DECISION: 11 APRIL 2024 

REPORT OF: SCRUTINY MANAGER 

CONTACT DETAILS 

Executive Director  Title Executive Director – Corporate Services 

 Name:  Mel Creighton Tel: 023 8083 3528 

 E-mail: Mel.creighton@southampton.gov.uk 

Author: Title Scrutiny Manager 

 Name:  Mark Pirnie Tel: 023 8083 3886 

 E-mail: Mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

N/A 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

This item enables the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to monitor and 
track progress on recommendations made to the Executive at previous meetings. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Committee considers the responses from the Executive to 
recommendations from previous meetings and provides feedback. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To assist the Committee in assessing the impact and consequence of 
recommendations made at previous meetings. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. None. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. Appendix 1 of the report sets out the recommendations made to the 
Executive at previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee (OSMC).  It also contains a summary of action taken by the 
Executive in response to the recommendations. 

4. The progress status for each recommendation is indicated and if the OSMC 
confirms acceptance of the items marked as completed they will be removed 
from the list.  In cases where action on the recommendation is outstanding or 
the Committee does not accept the matter has been adequately completed, it 
will be kept on the list and reported back to the next meeting.  It will remain on 
the list until such time as the Committee accepts the recommendation as 
completed.  Rejected recommendations will only be removed from the list 
after being reported to the OSMC. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

5. None. 

Property/Other 

6. None. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

7. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Part 1A Section 9 of 
the Local Government Act 2000. 

Other Legal Implications:  

8. None 

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

9. None. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

10. None 

KEY DECISION No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None directly as a result of this report 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations – 11 April 2024 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and Safety 
Impact Assessments (ESIA) to be carried out? 

No 

Data Protection Impact Assessment 

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection Impact 
Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out? 

No 

Other Background Documents 
Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 

Page 74



 

  

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee: Holding the Executive to Account 
Scrutiny Monitoring – 11 April 2024 
 

Date Portfolio  Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress 
Status 

14/03/24 Environment 
& Transport 

Household Waste 
Collection 
Services 

1) That a summary of missed collections for 
February 2024, by collection type, is 
circulated to the Committee. 

The table below shows the breakdown of 
missed bins by waste type in February 2024 
derived from reports to SCC from residents 
(service requests).  

Bin type 
Number of 
Missed bins 

Proportion of 
all missed bins 

Residual 7,598 50.8% 

Recycling 7,027 47.0% 

Glass 221 1.5% 

Green 98 0.7% 

Total 14,944 100.0  

This information does not provide a 
comprehensive picture of all bin collections 
that have been missed, as not all of these will 
have been reported by residents to SCC. This 
information is supplemented by the information 
gathered directly by the waste service about 
collection status of rounds, which has been 
provided to councillors regularly since the 
introduction of new working practices in waste. 
This information is used to manage 
performance and assign resources to tackle 
affected areas. 

Therefore, the headline figure (97.3% 
collection rate in February 2024 compared to 
99.8% in January) does not provide a full 
picture of the current disruption to waste 
collections; the statistic was offered to illustrate 
the tenfold increase in service requests 

Completed 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 

  

Date Portfolio  Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress 
Status 

experienced between January and February 
2024 and therefore an indication of the severe 
impact being experienced by residents and the 
determination of SCC to address this 
disruption. 

2) That consideration is given to updating the 
Council’s website, enabling the reporting 
of missed bins to be undertaken beyond 
the current 48-hour limit. 

SCC understands the feedback provided about 
this reporting restriction. Changes to this 
reporting procedure would affect subsequent 
service processes and so requires further 
consideration before any changes are made to 
it. A further update will be provided when this 
analysis is complete. 

 

3) That the Leader provides the Committee 
with confidential details related to the 
Administrations communications with the 
waste collectors and their trade union 
representatives. 

Confidential briefing document circulated to the 
Committee - 03/04/24 

Completed 

4) That, reflecting on the challenges 
experienced, the Executive review the 
approach followed and identify learning 
points to be utilised for future 
transformation projects. 

Debriefing will be undertaken at an appropriate 
stage in the project. 

 

5) That clarification is provided to the 
Committee on whether the Council is 
following due process with regards to 
enforcing employment contracts related to 
the current disruptions. 

SCC operates according to its policies and 
procedures. 

Completed 

14/03/24 Economic 
Development 

Solent LEP 
Integration into 
Solent Unitary 
Authorities 

1) That, in recognition of the current 
uncertainty with regards to long term 
funding, the issue returns to the 
Committee in 2024/25 with a focus on 
developing a sustainable model for 

Approved at 20/03/24 Cabinet meeting  

P
age 76



 

  

Date Portfolio  Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress 
Status 

supporting economic development in 
Southampton and the Solent region. 

2) That the Executive consider scheduling a 
briefing for members on economic 
development issues, with a focus on the 
Economic Development Strategy and 
deliverable outcomes and performance 
targets. 

Approved at 20/03/24 Cabinet meeting  

14/03/24 Economic 
Development 

Asset 
Development & 
Disposal 
Programme 
(ADDP) 

1) That, reflecting concerns about 
governance of the programme, the Chair 
of the Governance Committee and the 
OSMC engage with the Monitoring Officer 
to identify opportunities for appropriate 
and proportionate oversight of the ADDP.  

  

2) That a communications plan is developed 
to support the ADDP. 

Approved at 20/03/24 Cabinet meeting  

 

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (including matters arising)
	04.03.24 - Special
	14.03.24

	8 Forward Plan
	8a Housing Allocations Policy
	Annex 1
	Annex 2
	Annex 3
	Annex 4

	8b Toys R Us Development Agreement
	Annex 1 - Confidential
	Annex 2

	9 Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations to the Executive
	Monitoring - Appendix 1.docx


